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CIRCUIT COURT SUPPLEMENT 2 for VOLUME T of
VAN NATTA'S WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION REPORTER

The following Circuit Court dispositions have become available
since the publication of our first Circuit Court Supplement incident
to Volume I,

Edington, Mary Josephine, WCB #692; Affirmed,

Scoggins, Ben, WCB #67-92; Affirmed.

Schenck, Glenn, WCB #67-708; Affirmed except claimant allowed $18,50 for
cervical traction device,

Hoppus, Victor W., WCB #67-412; Award increased to 40% loss arm, »

Elkins, L. M,, WCB #926; Hay-J; "This matter is a review on appeal from an
order filed and entered by the Workmen's Compensation Board on February 14,
1968, which affirmed the findings and conclusions of the hearing officer
made and entered on November 14, 1967 finding the disability of claimant
for permanent partial disability to be equal to 60% loss of function of
an arm with 357 allocated to the unscheduled disability of the lumbar
spine and 25% allocated to the unscheduled disability of the dorsal
spine. The record discloses that the claimant suffered an accidental
injury on August 28, 1964, and the sole issue in this case is the extent
of permanent partial disability proximately caused by this injury. The
evidence further reflects that claimant had suffered an earlier non-
compensable injury on January 1, 1963 involving his lumbar spine, but
that he had become symptom free from any effect of the earlier injury
prior to his injury of August, 1964. The evidence further discloses that
claimant suffered an incident on February 8, 1967, as a result of marital
relations which resulted in the necessity of nearly a week of rest and
medical treatment. The Court finds, as did the hearing officer, that
the incident of February 8, 1967 was not an accident, but rather a
serious exacerbation of the preexisting difficulty in the low back which
had previously been caused by the compensable injury of August 28, 1964,

"After a review of the evidence in the record, both from medical
witnesses as well as lay witnesses, the Court finds that claimant was
suffering serious difficulty with his low back at the time of the hearing
which limited seriously his activities both at work and off the job.

The evidence discloses that claimant had, prior to the August, 1964
accident, led a normal, active life, and that as arwsult of the August,
1964 accident, he has been forced to give up gardening, bowling, dancing,
fishing, playing the organ and piano, carrying the family groceries, and
inability to engage in normal marital sexual relations as evidenced by

the incident of February 8, 1967, and that he seldom experiences pain free
days. '

"The Court finds that the disablement which the claimant suffers is
reasonably connected to the compensatory injury suffered on August 28,
1964 by the credible medical evidence received and supported by ample
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evidence of lay witnesses. Although there has been some suggestion that
the treating physician's testimony is somehow discredited by his having
changed his opinion as to the degree of disability during the course of
his treatment, and further, by his admitted friendship to the claimant,
the Court finds no reason to discredit the attending physician's testi-
mony as there is no indication that the Doctor was false in any respect,

"From the entire record, the Court finds that the order of the
Board dated February 14, 1968 affirming the previous findings and award
of the hearing officer determining the extent of permanent partial
unscheduled disability is inadequate and not supported by the substantial
credible evidence, and is, accordingly, vacated and set aside, The
Court concludes that the claimant is entitled to be granted an award of
permanent partial unscheduled disability to his back to be equal to
75% loss of function of an arm with 50% allocated to the lumbar spine
and 25% allocated to the dorsal spine. Counsel for claimant may prepare
an order consistent with the foregoing."

Schrier, Frances, WCB #67-443; Award increased to 25% loss use arm,
Prodzinski, Carl E,, WCB #67-1444; Affirmed.
Husted, Patricia E.,, WCB #67-967; Hay-J; "Claimant seeks judicial review

of the Order of the Workmen's Compensation Board dated April 30, 1968
which affirmed the Order of the hearing officer which has allowed perma-
nent partial disability to the claimant equal to 10% loss of an arm by
separation, The claimant seeks an order reversing the Order of the
Board and directing the Board and the State Compensation Department to
furnish claimant further treatment, or in the alternative, asks the
Court to rate the claimant's permanent partial disability at not less
than 50% loss of an arm,

"The principal question on appeal is the admissibility of the report
of Dr. Arthur C, Jones dated March 26, 1968, and based upon an examina-
tion of the claimant made on March 20, 1968, which was after the hearing
and before the Order of the Workmen's Compensation Board. Dr. Jones'
letter was appended to claimant's reply brief filed with the Board on
April 10, 1968, and in these proceedings specially marked as claimant's
exhibit one, The admissibility of this report must be determined by a
determination of the meaning of ORS 656,298 (6) which provides: '...Hows
ever, the judge may hear additional evidence concerning disability that
was not obtainable at the time of the hearing. ...'. There is no
indication from the evidence that Dr, Jones' examination and report
could not have been obtained prior to the hearing, and the Court concludes
therefore, the claimant!'s exhibit one, Dr, Jones' report, is not admis-
sible in evidence in connection with the Circuit Court review. Dis-
regarding the report of Dr. Jones, the Court concludes that there is no
credible evidence in the record to indicate that the claimant's condition
medically is anything but stationary. The Court feels that the evidence
supports the findings of the hearing officer as affirmed by the Board
and the award of 10% loss of an arm by reason of unscheduled disability
to the back is an adequate award,

"Counsel for the Department may prepare a judgment affirming the
Order of the Board."
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Truax, Roger, WCB #67-8863; Edison-J; "Having received no response to my
letter of December 11, 1968, I assume that ¢ounsel did not wish to
submit any further memoranda of law and I shall therefore proceed to
decide this matter on the record and in light of previous oral argument.

"Tt would appear from ORS 656.002 (7) that a workman's compensation
for injury includes medical services as are entailed in this case. It
further appears that this case in making an award of attorney's fees is -

controlled by ORS 656.386 (2) which requires such attorney's fees to be ,

paid from the workman's award of compensation. Since the award to this’
particular workman was for additional medical services, there is no
monetary compensation from which payment of attorney's fees may be made.
It cannot therefore be said that the Workmen's Compensation Board acted
inappropriately in making its order of June 26, 1968, In that regard,
this Court's attention has not been invited to any decision or other
authority -which would construe the 1966 Workmen's Compensation Law so
as to allow any other course of action, nor has the Court's own reading
of the law revealed anything of the kind,

"It would be appropriate to observe, however, that the conscience
of this Court is disturbed by the basic unfairness of this situation,
Obviously the 1966 act should have provided the Court with the power to
award attorney's fees in this case, probably in the manner specified in
ORS 656.386 (1), in addition to the award of increased medical services.
It therefore seems apparent. that the Claimant's only remedy lies with the
Legislature and if this Court can lend assistance to such an endeavor
it will be pleased to do so.

"I will ask Mrs, Sorensen to prepare an order pursuant to this
opinion affirming the Board's order.,"

Doud, Dean N,, WCB #67-5313; "Review...dismissed on the ground that the
Workmen's Compensation Board had no jurisdiction to enter the Order
appealed from because no copy of claimant's Request for Review filed
with the Workmen's Compensation Board was mailed to the State Compen=-
sation Department as required by ORS 656,295 (2)."

Kreier, Richard L., WCB #67-1513; Affirmed.

Wing, Michael Spencer, WCB #67-1005; Affirmed as to compensation but
reversed as to attorney's fees.

Bryant, Herbert J., WCB #67-1440; Affirmed.

Waibel, Joe, WCB #67-181; Additional temporary total disability allowed,

Fretwell, Willie B.,, WCB #67-1040; Dismissed for improper notice of appeal.

Lemons, Bill R., WCB #67-8453; "IT IS HEREBY ORDERED and ADJUDGED That the
order on review of the Workmen's Compensation Board dated July 24, 1968,
be and the same is hereby reversed, and the State Compensation Department
be and it is hereby ordered to provide to claimant medical care and
services and hospital care and services proximately resulting from his
accidental injury of September 23, 1966, and specifically, to-wit, those
medical and hospital charges for care and services, together with all
other medical benefits as provided by the Workmen's Compensation Act
commencing May 23, 1967, and subsequent thereto as this Court has found
related to ‘the accident of September 23, 1966, and further to provide
claimant such temporary total disability benefits and permanent partial
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disability benefits as shall be appropriate and consistent with the
opinion of this Court, and such other benefits as claimant shall be
entitled to under the Workmen's Compensation Law of the State of Oregon
as then in force and effect."

Johnson, Virgil R., WCB #67-772; Burns-J; "This workmen's compensation

appeal was brought here by Claimant, who was employed as a welder for
Zidell Exploration, He had been working for about 2% months at that job
when, on March 24, 1966, while he was on a scaffolding, the cable broke
and he flipped over backwards, falling 6 or 7 feet, and landing on an
I-beam., He felt severe low back and shoulder pain, was treated by his
family physician, and returned to work on Monday the 28th of March.

"Thereafter, he worked regularly for Zidell during April, but by
April 28th low back pain and numbness in his right thigh was troubling
him, Whereupon, he returned to Dr. Peterson. He was admitted to Salem
General Hospital May 2, 1966, for conservative treatment. After about
two weeks in the hsopital he returned to work and in June, 1966, lost
one working day because of back problems. Dr. Peterson cleared him for
return to work May 16th, and the claim was closed on August 16, 1966,

"He received some further treatment during the summer, but after
being laid off, he filed for unemployment benefits.

"Thereafter, he was hired as a welder by another company in October,
1966, and stated that he still was having back pain at the time, On
November 26, 1966, he saw an osteopath during the morning because his
back was giving him so much trouble that it was difficult for him to
get out of bed. The osteopath's diagnosis tended to indicate that
claimant had a lumbo-sacral disc disorder. Coincidentally, on the
evening of that day, Claimant received extensive injuries when his
automobile went out of control and struck a power pole. He was hospital-
ized 12 days in the Gresham General Hospital receiving treatment for a
fractured clavicle, cuts and bruises, an ankle sprain, and a lumbo-
sacral back sprain. He suffered back and leg pains while he was in the
hospital and complained of this, He was referred to his local doctor
for follow-up care.

"By March, 1967, the only symptoms remaining from the auto accident
were low back and right thigh pain. Claimant was then referred to Dr,
Mueller, an orthopedist., He specifically told Dr, Mueller that he had
been injured in the auto accident described, and stated that he had no
previous injuries to his back, He made no mention whatsoever of the
industrial injury on which this claim was based,

"Following a myelogram, which showed a disc protrusion, a laminec-
tomy and exclusion of the disc was performed. The hospital record does
contain a notation relative to the industrial injury with related back
pain. !

"Claimant was subsequently discharged by Dr. Mueller in September,
who felt he was medically stationary, but should continue exercising and
should avoid heavy lifting and activity,

"Claimant was examined by Dr, Lawrence Cohen, who discounted the
affect of the industrial injury as productive of the continuing back
pain, emphasizing rather injuries earlier than 1966. Dr. Cohen did not
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feel that the disc problem operated on by Dr, Mueller was related to
job injury, but he did feel that the 1ndustr1a1 accident aggravated his
previous back condition. -

"The Hearing Officer wrote a ¢omprehensive opinion in which he
noted four 'puzzling contradictions' in the evidence, all of which
tended to negate the validity of his claim that any of his symptoms after
November 26, 1966, were causally related to the industrial accident as
opposed to the automobile accident. The Hearing Officer made a perma-

" nent partial disability award for unscheduled disability of 25% loss by

separation of an arm, plus payment of all medical care and treatment
described in the order by the carrier; she further ordered temporary

"total disability from March 11, 1967, to September 8, 1967. From this

order, the State Compensatlon Department appealed to the Board.

"The Board reversed the order of the Hearing Offlcer in its entirety,
declaring that medical expenses in April and May, 1967, and any subsequent
temporary total and permanent partial. disabilities were not related to
the industrial acc1dentol

"Following this order, the Claimant appealed Brief oral testimony
was taken at the hearing before me. Claimant urged vigorously that the
‘puzzling contradictions' were not, in fact, contradictions at all, and
that the Board's rationale in reversing the Hearing Officer was erroneous.

"As all involved know, rules governing on appeal of this kind are
still governed by two cases, Coday and Romero. As I have mentioned in
a number of previous opinions, Coday orders me to try the case de novo;
Romaro orders me to accord deference to adminstrative agency expertise.
Romero, of course, did not involve a case such as this one in which the
agency 'experts' disagree. The 'expertise' of the Hearing Officer led
her to conclude that the back problems in 1967 were causally related to
the industrial accident. The ‘'expertise' of the Board led all three of
its members to conclude precisely the opposite.

"Frankly, I am unsure as to compulsion in this posture by Romero,
If I were to try this case entirely de novo, I would rule against the
Claimant., I do not believe the medical evidence is sufficient to justify
a finding of causation between the industrial accident and the back
surgery in 1967 and its following effects. If I follow the expertise
of the Board, I would have to affirm. If I follow the expertise of the
Hearing Officer, I would have to reverse and reinstate the award of that
officer.

"I do not believe Romero requires me to follow the expertise of
the Hearing Officer when the Board reaches an opposite conclusion.
Accordingly, I affirm the ruling of the Board., The Department, in
accordance with its usual practice, filed a request for special findings
under ORS 17.431. Accordingly, I make the following special findings:

"1) Claimant suffered an accidental injury arising out of and

in the course of his employment on March 24, 1966, involving back
pain which produced temporary total disability from then until
May 16, 1966;
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2) Claimant suffered back and other injuries in a non-industrial
accident on November 26, 19663

3) Hospitalization occurring in April and May, 1967, was not
causally related to the industrial accident;

4) Claimant suffered no permanent partial disability resulting
from the industrial accidenty

5) Claimant suffered no temporary total disability in the period
following April, 1967, from the industrial accident.

"I conclude, as a matter of law, that the employer's carrier was

not liable for the hospitalization in April and May, 1967; I further
conclude that Claimant was not entitled to temporary total disability
during the period from March to September, 1967, nor is he entitled
to any permanent partial disability as allowed by the Hearing Officer,

Mr, Knapp should prepare an order."
Sain, John J., WCB #68-532; Reversed and remanded for hearing on merits.
Fullerton, Savola, WCB #67-1180; Permanent total disability allowed,
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CIRCUIT COURT ORDERS AND OPINTONS

Seratt, Kelly L., WCB #67-29; Motion to guiash service of summons be

granted.

Voigt, Fred W., WCB #67-119; Affirmed.
Luck, Maury Gene, WCB #67-3; Affirmed.
Freeman, Loren B,, WCB #855; Affirmed.
McCGill, Myrnaloy, WCB #123; Remanded for consideration of further medical

reports.

Mace, Lugene R., Jr., WCB #67-366; "Finds and concludes:

(1) That this Court may affirm, reverse, modify or supplement the order
appealed from and may make such disposition of the case as the Court
deems appropriate upon the record.

(2) That the claimant has sustained as a result of his accidental
personal injury of April 13, 1966, injuries to his back as well as to
his feet, and his present back trouble is directly attributable or
causally related to his jump from the ladder on said date.

(3) That the claimant is entitled to compensation for temporary total
and/or temporary partial disability as the case may be for his back
condition and medical care and treatment therefore,

(4) That this claim be and the same is hereby remanded to the Work-
men's Compensation Board and to the State Compensation Department
for further proceedings in conformance with this order and not incon-

sistent herewith, ,

(5) The law firm of Pozzi, Levin aad Wilson are entitled to an attorney
fee equal to 257 of the increased award of compensation for either
temporary or permanent disability to be paid to the claimant by virtue
of this order, now, therefore,

IT IS HZREBY ORDERED that the order on review of the Workmen's Compen-
sation Board be and the same is hereby reversed as is the order of
the hearing officer dated June 12, 1967, and .... "

Borland, John L., WCB #67-204; Wells, J.3; "Plaintiff filed a claim seeking

to recover compensation for a slowly developing inguinal h=rnia. Upon

a finding by the hearing officer and the Board in his favor, the Depart-
ment has appealed, contending that the evidence referred to in the
Board's order was insufficient to sustain its finding.

"There is no dispute between the parties that medical testimony
is required that the hernia was work related in order for the plaintiff
to prevail. As stated by counsel for the Department, what is required
is that it be more probable than not that the harnia developad as a
consequence of the employment of the plaintiff, Considerable testimony
was introdiced during the hsaring relative to the causes of inguinal
hernias. The Department contends, however, that the testimony of the
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doctor was inconclusive with respect as to whether the hernia of the
claimant was work related. It is contended that the statement of the
treating doctor that,

As far as can be determined Mr. Borland's recurrent

inguinal hernia was due to heavy lifting in his floor work

was insufficient testimony as to causation, as a matter of law, and
should be stricken from the decision of the Board and the matter
re-referred to it for further consideration as to whether there was
sufficient evidence aside from that statement to justify an award.

"The Department has cited Howerton v, Pfaff, 84 Adv Sh 473 for
authority that the doctor's statement does not rise to the stature
of a ‘'reasonable degree of medical certainty'. It is noted that in
the cited case the testimony merely indicated that the accident was
‘the possible source of the plaintiff's difficulty'. The same is true
of the testimony in Crawford v, Seufert, 236 Or 369. It is hornbook
law that "possibilities" are not enough to sustain the element of
causation.

"Rather than to take the one statement of the treating physician
out of its entire context, the Court has read the full testimony, as
well as examined the exhibits and is convinced that that part of the
Board's opinion which states,

W hile not couched in so-called magic words, the Board con-
cludes the doctor's evaluation is equivalent to a statement
that the injury probably resulted from the work stress

is a finding by the Board that the testimony indicated that it was
probable that the claimant's condition was casually connected with his
employment.

"It was suggested in oral argument that the Board had abdicated
its responsibility in not making a specific finding to this effect,
and this Court should require the Board to exercise its responsibility
rather than accepting its general finding as follows:

There being substantial competent evidence to support the
findings and conclusions of the Hearing Officer, they are
adopted as those of the Board and the order subjected to
review is affirmed.

While it may be better procedure for the Board to adopt this suggestion,
this Court in fairness to the claimant does not believe he should be
subjected to further litigation solely to establish proper procedures

for the Board. The Court has, therefore, reviewed the entire record
and based thereon hereby affirms the decision of the Board."

Elliott, Sandra, WCB #811; Affirmed.
Moffet, Fred, WCB #6063 Award set aside because claim not filed within

100 days.

Kelley, Maurice E., WCB #67-177; Award increased to 35% forearm.
Fairchild, Clayton D., WCB #67-1423 Affirmed.
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19 Hayden, William A,, WCB #533; Affirmed.
Wells, J.; "Plaintiff has appealed from
Board which affirmed a finding
disability resulting from an

20  Oreskovich, Joa N.,, WCB #67-63;
a decision of the Workmen's Compensation
by the Hearing Officer of a ten per cent
injury sustained on June 23, 1966.

"Appellant has not contested the finding of the Hearing Officer
regarding the facts but does contend that there has been an error in
the principle evoked in requiring the claimant to prove 'the specific
degree of disability which is attributable to the injury of June 23,
1966'. He contends that he is required only to show that he was
disabled as a result of an accident and is entitled to receive the
amount of disability existing as the result of the accident.

"Claimant was sixty-seven at the time of his injury and was em-
ployed as a loagshoreman for the City of Portland, Commission of Public
Docks. While in the process of cleaning up the railroad yards at Pier
No. 2, he lifted the end of a large timber, approximately 16 feet long
and weighing 600 pounds, which was balanced near its center, a fork-
1ift truck shifted the timber from its point of balance so as a result
much more of the weight of the timber was placed upon the claimant and
he suffered a strain of his back.,

"Claimant is unable to work at the present time in any form of
longshore work or to obtain aay gainful employment of any type. He
has considerable loss of motioa in his lower back associated with con-
stant pain., His total disability, however, has been attributed to
additional factors other than the accident of June 23, 1966, In the
course of his work as a longshoreman he has sustained a number of prior
injuries. Despite these previous awards for disability, however, he
was able to work as a longshoreman on the 'old man's board', which
was assigned lighter work.,

"His physical injuries are superimposed upon the usual problems
associated with a man of his age. The doctor reported that he has
'severe degenzrative arthritis', scoliosis and emphysema. Dr, Patton's
report of December 29, 1966, expressed the opinion that the claimant's
'other conditions of emphysema and obesity are probably causing him
more trouble than his back pain.' Despite these disabilities, however,
he worked regularly on a full time basis up to the time of the accident.,
During the six moaths of 1966 prior to the accident hz had earned

$4,400.00.

"Under the law, an employer takes the workman as he finds him and is
responsible when an accident lights up, accelerates or aggravates a pre-
existing condition. Armstrong v. SIAC 146 Or. 569, Thz fact that a
claimant may have previously received an award does not preclude an
award for injury to the same place. The Workman's Compensation Law
must be liberally interpreted in favor of the workman.

The 1law contemplates that the injured workman may, and per-
haps will, again become employed in industry in some capacity,
It would indeed be unjust if, while gainfully employed, the
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20 workman suffered another accident proximately resulting
in additional permanent partial disability, he were denied
any compensation therefor. We do not believe the legis-
lature intended any such harsh result, The Workmen's
Compensation Law must always be given a liberal interpre-
tation. It is just a coincidence that plaintiff's second
injury involved the same part of his body as that injured
in the first accident, and that fact can have no bearing
upon plaintiff's right to compensation for the permanent
injury actually suffered as the result of the second ac-
cident. Payments for his first permanent partial disability
award had long since terminated. Greexv, SIAC, 197 Or.
160, 169.

"Attorney for the Workmen's Compensation Department has cited
Cain v, SIAC, 149 Or. 29 for the proposition that a workman who
repeatedly suffers the same type of injury is entitled to receive no
greater compensation because of the recurrence of the hurt to the
same part of his body than is warranted by the additional degree of
disability brought about by the specific injury for which he seeks
compensation. Assuming for the moment that this may be the law, the
facts in the cited case are dissimilar to the instant one. The Court
assumes that one of the purposes of the act is to restore the injured
workman as soon as possible to a condition of self-support and main-
tenance as an able-bodied workman. That this was accomplished in the
instant case is evident from the fact that at the time of his most
recent injury he was engaged in a gainful occupation on a full time
basis. As the result of his injury he now, however, is permanently
and totally disabled from performing any gainful employment.

The Hearing Officer stated:

Claimant's evidence clearly proves the existence of a
large degree of disability, probable total disability.
Nevertheless, there is no clear evidence establishing the
extent of this disability as related to the injury of
June 23, 1966, Such disability as claimant suffers must
be prorated between emphysema, age, prior disabilities,
obesity and degenerative arthritis. It is not necessary
to allocate a specific amount of disability to each of these,
but it is necessary to allocate the specific degree of
disability which is attributable to the injury of June 23,
1966.

"It is not necessary that the accident be the sole cause of the
disability or that it be pro-rated. A better view is that adopted
by the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals in Independent Stevedore
Company v, O'Leary, 357 F. 2nd 812 where the claimant, at the time
he was hurt on several previous occasions. As the result of spinal
fusion associated with preexisting osteoarthritic changes in the lumbo-
sacral spine the claimant was permanently and totally disabled.
The Court stated:
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While it is true that a doctor testified that
only forty per cent of the employee's total dis-
ability was due to the spinal fusion, the fact that
the fusion was not the sole cause of the disability
is irrelevant. 'It is well settled in compensation
law that it is sufficient to justify an award if the

accident was only a concurring cause ***,' 0ld
Dominion Stevedoring Corp. v. O'Hearne , 218 F. 2d
651, 653 (4th Cir. 1955). *** It is enough if the

accident 'aggravated, accelerated, or combined with
the disease or infirmity toproduce the death or dis-
ability for which compensation is sought' (1 Larson,
Workmen's Compensation Law Sec. 12.20 p. 192.23),
and 'the relative contribution of the accident and
the prior disease is not weighed,' 1 Larson, supra,
pp. 192.48-.49,

"Counsel for the State Compensation Department contends that
since the claimant was working past the normal retirement age, and
within a week of the injury retired from the labor market by apply-
ing for his social security benefits he should not be entitled to
total disability. The Court believes this fact is irrelevant to the

issue.

If an employee is incapacitated from earning wages
by an employment injury which accelerates a condition
which would ultimately have become incapacitating in
any event, the employee is incapacitated 'because of'
the employment injury, and the resulting 'disability'
is compensable under the Act. 01d Dominion Steve-
doring Corp. v. O'Hearne, Supra at 815,

"For the foregoing reasons the Court is of the opinion that
there has been an erroneous application of the law in requiring the
claimant to 'allocate the specific degree of liability which is
attributable to the injury of June 23, 1966.' The award for
permanent partial disability equal to ten per cent loss of an arm
by separation for an unscheduled disability will be set aside and
the claimant granted an award of permanent total disability.”

Kautz, George, WCB #67-469; Affirmed.

Byers, John F., WCB #67-175; Award increased to 40% loss of arm for
unscheduled injury and disability.

Cooper, Robert B,, WCB #67-50; Affirmed.

Rios, Carlos V., WCB #67-432; Claim reopened for further care and
treatment,
Alexander, Howard, WCB #67-550; Affirmed.
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30 Ayres, Thomas H., WCB #67-577; "Claimant sustained serious injuries in
his accident of September 12, 1966, and as a result has sustained
serious and permanent disability in his left lower leg and in his back,
That such disabilities drastically interfere with his ability as an
iron worker and would interfere with his ability to work at any live-
lihood. That the disability sustained by the claimant is equal to
507% loss function of the left foot and the equivalent of 50% loss of
an arm by separation for ‘his unscheduled disabilities.

"There is no evidence in the record to support a conclusion by
the Board that the Accident Commission had established an admin is-
trative interpretation and policy that a loss of sense of taste or
smell could not be a permanent partial disability under the Oregon
Workmen's Compensation Law.

"There was no evidence submitted sufficient to sustain a finding
that claimant suffered any permanent partial disability based on the
claim of loss of sense of taste,

"Conclusions of Law: The Workmen's Compensation Board was in error
in holding that the loss of taste or smell is not an injury known in
surgery as permanent partial disability,

"NOW, THEREFORE, based upon the Finding of Fact and Conclusions of
Law, the Court enters its judgment in favor of the claimant and remands
this matter back to the State Compensation Department directing it to
enter an order granting to the claimant an award of permanent partial
disability equivalent to 50% loss of function of his left foot and 50%
loss of an arm by separation for his unscheduled disabilities, being
an increase of 30% loss of an arm for his unscheduled disabilities."

31 Fullmer, Anthony, Jr., WCB #664; Affirmed.
33 Bridge, Dale Eugene, WCB #315; Affirmed.
34 Loper, James F., WCB #67-207; vThat the Order on Review made and entered

by the Workmen's Compensation Board of the State of Oregon on November 21,

1967, be aand the same hereby is affirmed, reversed and remanded as
follows:

(1) The findings of proximate cause set forth in said Order of June 9,
1967, hereby are affirmed.

(2) The imposition of penalty for the delay in 2 payments in February,
1967, be and the same hereby is affirmed.

(3) The imposition of penalties for seeking to terminate compensability,
being the penalties for unreasonable resistance of claim set forth in
said Order, be and the same hereby is reversed.

(4) The award of atta neys' fees set forth in said Order hereby is
affirmed.

(5) This matter hereby is remanded to the said Workmen's Compensation
Board of the State of Oregon for determination of the following issues
(a) whether Claimant's condition is temporary or stationary; (b) if
temporary, whether Claimant is in need of further medical, including
psychiatric, treatment; or (c) if stationary, whether Claimant has any

permanent disability, and if so, the extent thereof."
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Johnson, Beno, WCB #799; Affirmed.

Guy, Thomas, WCB #852; Award increased to 25% loss of function of
left forearm, -

Richert, Erwin L., WCB #67-437; Award increased to 15% arm for
unscheduled disability.

Benedict, William J., WCB #67-294; Temporary total allowed April 21 -

June 8, 1967. Permanent partial increased to 35% of arm for
unscheduled.

Stephens, Edward F., WCB #67-535; Award increased 20% loss function of
left foot.

Carlson, Ludvick W., WCB #67-397; Award increased to 42%% loss of arm
for unscheduled.

Simmons, Frank A.,, WCB #67-287; Remanded for further evidence.

Williams, Thomas H., WCB #67-410; Remanded for acceptance.

Thornbrugh, Leonard E.,, WCB #67-395; Award increased to 60% loss of
arm for unscheduled,

Kilgore, Eddie L., WCB #67-284; Affirmed.

Tourville, C. J., WCB #67-3013; Award increased to 25% loss function of
right arm and 15% loss of arm for unscheduled disability.

White, John Virgil, WCB #67-372; Affirmed.

Serles, Wilbert O., WCB #67-382; Dismissed,

Smith, William Raymond, WCB #67-363; Award increased to 50% loss of
arm for unscheduled disability,

Turvey, Roy B,, WCB #67-541; Remanded for further evidence.

Finley, Sam, WCB #67-148; Affirmed.

Desgrange, Michael J., WCB #67-55; Affirmed.

Egr, Corinne Bernice, WCB #67-504; Reversed with instructions to accept
claim,

Gonsalves, Alexander H., WCB #67-351; Award of 50% loss of an arm by
separation for unscheduled injuries and disabilities and 10% loss
function of a leg.

Hewlett, Charles W., WCB #67-711; Award increased to 20% loss of arm
for unscheduled disability.

Cunningham, Hiram S., Sr., WCB #705; Dismissed.

Henrikson, Robert, WCB #67-98; Affirmed.

Schulz, Ray, WCB #67-709; Affirmed.

Swink, William Floyd, WCB #67-67; "This matter having come on regularly
before the above entitled Court and the undersigned Judge, upon the
request of the claimant for Judicial Review of the order on review of
the Workmen's Compensation Board dated the 10th day of January, 1968,
on the entire record forwarded by the Workmen's Compensation Board to
this Court, and this Court does find that the State Compensation
Departmaent did unreasonably delay the payment of compensation for
temporary total disability as found by the hearing officer in his
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order dated the 30th day of August, 1967, and in addition thereto, the
Court finds that the State Compensation Department did unreasonably
resist the payment of compensation for temporary total disability
benefits for the periods therein indicated, now, therefore,

“"IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the law firm of Pozzi, Levin and Wilson
be and they are hereby awarded an attorney fee in the amount of $400.00
in the representation of the claimant before the hearings officer, on
the request for review, and on appeal to this Court to be paid to them
by the State Compensation Department, and said attorney fees are not
to be assessed against the increased compensation awarded to the claimant
herein, and

"IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the order on review and the order of
the hearing officer, awarding to the claimant further compensation for
temporary total disability be and the same is affirmed by this Court,
and

*IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that this case and claim be and the same
is hereby remanded to the Workmen's Compensation Board and/or the
State Compensation Department of the State of Oregon for further
proceedings in conformance with this order and not inconsistent here-
with, ...,

Belding, Aretta, WCB #67-6143; Affirmed.

Cole, Donald T., WCB #67-876; Affirmed.

Antoine, Leona, WCB #67-840; Award of temporary total disability on
five-day-per-week basis.

Bradley, Estil, WCB #67-1168; Affirmed,

Williamson, Joe W,, WCB #67-200; Award increased to 40% loss function

of left leg.
Smith, Thomas L., WCB #67-7713 Affirmed.
Butcher, Clifford, WCB #67-6713 Remanded with instructions to accept claim,
Matson, Earl L., WCB #67-803; Affirmed.
Leech, Willis E., WCB #67-110; "ORS 656.204 (8), relating to payments after
the death of a workman who has sustained a compensable injury, provides:

'If a child is an invalid at the time he becomes 18 years of age,
the payment to him shall continue while he remains an invalid.'

In this case, the deceased workman was survived by an invalid
child who had already attained the age of 18 years,

The statute is capable of these constructions:

1. That payments begun prior to the death of the workman will
be continued after his death for an invalid child.

2. That a child becoming an invalid before attaining 18 years of
age, as distinguished from a child becomeing invalided after attaining

the age of 18 years, will continue to be entitled to payment despite
becoming over-age.

Since the statute is capable of two constructions, it is ambiguous,
The manifest purpose of the act was to make a child, who becomes invalided
during non-age, a dependent so long as that condition continues.”
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71  Printz, Carl A,, WCB #67-498; 'Finds and concludes:
(1) The State Compensation Department's Notice of Denial dated
November 2, 1966 (Exhibit No, 7) was not mailed or received by
the claimant, Irene L. Printz, the widow of the deceased workman,

either the original or copy thereof, and

(2) the order of the State Compensation Department dated November 2,
1966 is a nullity and does not bar the claimant to her right of a
hearing before the Workmen's Compensation Board on the issue of the
compensability of her claim for widow's benefits and

(3) the claimant's request for hearing was and is a timely appeal
from the Notice of Denial mailed by the State Compensation Department

March 15, 1967, and

(4) the claimant's attorneys, Pozzi, Levin and Wilson are entitled
to attorney fees in the sum of $1,500.00 as reasonable attorney fees
to be paid to them as costs to the State Compensation Department.”

72  Satterfield, Charles E., WCB #67-477; Langtry, J.; "This is an appeal
from the Workmen's Compensation Board's decision which reversed a hear-
ing officer's decision. The latter allowed a claim, the former dis-
allowed it. The reversal is based largely on the conclusions of the
board that the hearings officer was wrong in placing the burden on the
department to show that it was prejudiced by claimant's failure to
give timely notice.

"Claimant's allegation is that his back condition resulted from
two incidents on the job. The first incident was on January 3, 1967,
while lifting a tire weighing about 60 pourds onto a trimming machine
(Tr. p.8). Claimant testified that he did not report this on that day,
but did mention to the foreman on the following day, January 4, 1967,
that his back was bothering him (Tr. p. 15). On cross-examination he
said that this was just a matter of conversation and was not intended
as a report of an injury (Tr. pp.56-57).

"The second incident was on January 5, 1967, while loading some
tires on a truck at Santry Tire Co. (Tr. p. 18). Claimant testified that
on his return to employer's premises he asked the bookkeeper if there
was a company doctor and stated that he had done something to his back.
(Tr. pp. 18-19). On cross-examination he testified that when he was
talking to the bookkeeper he was not claiming an on job injury (Tr.pp.57-58).

“On January 6, 1967, claimant was laid off at Burns Bros. Forty-
nine days later, on February 23, 1967, claimant filed his claim for
injuries (Tr. p.62). In the meantime he had done other extensive
physical labor, any or all of which could easily have aggravated an
injured back. He had recéived medication and an outpatient checkup on
his back a few days after his termination at Burns Bros., but at that
time made no compensation claim. ORS 656,265 (1) provides:

Notice of an accident resulting in an injury or death shall be
given immediately by the workman or his dependent to the employer,
but not later than 30 days after the accident. *¥*¥¥¥,
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Failure to give notice as required by this section bars a

claim * * * unless:

(a) The contributing employer or direct responsibility
employer had knowledge of the injury or death, or
the department or direct responsibility employer
has not been prejudiced by failure to receive the
notice; or

P PR
WO W

(c) The notice is given within one year after the date
of the accident and the workman or his beneficiares
establish in a hearing he had good cause for failure to
give notice within 30 days after the accident.

It is obvious that this claim is barred unless the facts of the case
can be brought within the exceptions of ORS 656.265 (4).

"Claimant testified that he did not tell his employer that he had
hurt himself on the job (Tr.pp.56-58). He did testify that on two
occasions he mentioned that his back was bothering him, The foreman,
Mr. Fluharty, testified that he did not recall any conversation with
claimant in which claimant mentioned his back bothering him or of any

"~ claim of an injury on the job (Tr. pp. 117-118). A fair appraisal
of the evidence leads to the conclusion that the employer did not have
and could not have had knowledge of the claim.

Actual knowledge of employer within compensation act provision
excusing written notice of the accident or injury, means know-
ledge of a compensable injury and involve more than knowledge of
the mere happening of an accident or than merely putting upon
inquiry, and notice in casual conversation or mere notice to
employer that the employee became sick while at work is insuf-
ficient. Ogletree v. Jones, 106 P,2d 302.

"Even though there was no timely written notice filed, and no
actual knowledge of the accident and injury on part of employer, claimant
may recover if the employer has not been prejudiced thereby. Time it-
self may work as a prejudice.

The requirement of the Workmen's Compensation Act that the
employer have actual knowledge or be given written notice of
the accident and injury is for the protection of the employer
in order that he may investigate the facts and circumstances
and question witnesses, and to prevent filing of fictitious
claims when lapse of time makes proof of genuineness difficult.
Ogletree v. Jones, supra.

Further, if notice were timely given, there would be an opportunity to
prevent aggravation of injury by unwise activity.,

"There seems to be a split of authority in other states on the
question of burden of proof regarding prejudice to the employer. .
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Individual statute should govern, but the Oregon statute gives no
guidance. Reason indicates the better rule is that the claimant

should carry the burden. His position as to availability of evi-

dence is as good or better than that of the employer. The delay was
his, unless he was misled, Thus, this Court agrees with the board

that the claimant had the burden to prove that he is protected by the
exception in the statute., Regardless of the burden in this regard, the
evidence makes it hard to believe the delay in notice was anything but
prejudicial to the employer.

"Timely notice is also excused under ORS 656.265 (4) (c¢) if notice
is given within one year of the accident and the workman establishes
in a hearing that he had good cause for a failure to give notice within
30 days. Claimant testified that he had only a sixth grade education,
and that he did not understand that he could still make a claim for an
on the job injury even though he had been laid off (Tr. p.69). Claimant
has had two prior on the job back injuries, one in 1956 and one in 1962
(Tr. pp. 4 & 7). It is reasonable to assume he had some knowledge of
the Workmen's Compensation Law. Adequate reason in this regard has not
been given for failure to file a timely notice.

"Claimant says that the Department waived any defect as to notice
by not raising it sooner than it did., If the Workmen's Compensation
Department is to defend on the basis of lack of timely notice, it must
be raised as provided in ORS 656,265 (5),

The issue of failure to give notice must be raised at the
first hearing on a claim for compensation in respect to the
injury or death,

This was properly done at the hearing June 22, 1967 (Tr. p.34). There=
fore, it must be concluded that since there was no timely notice, the
claim must be denied.

"While the Court will ordinarily not disturb the fact finding of
the hearing officer when it is based upon evidence, in this case it
appears that the reversal by the board was properly based upon questions
relating to the law. (Adams v, Compensation Dept., 86 Adv. Sheets 597,
at p. 600). The decision of the board is affirmed.”

McDaniel, Joe R., WCB #67-815; Remanded with instructions to reopen

claim

Mott, Robin A., WCB #917; Affirmed.

Schanno, Arthur, WCB #67-754; Affirmed.

Withers, Ernestine, WCB #67-2833 Affirmed,

Lawson, Alfred F., WCB #67-837; Remanded for payment of benefits.
Beagle; John H., WCB #67-1028; Award increased to 75% loss of an arm

by separation for unscehduled injuries; 507 loss function of a fore-
arm for injury.

Tooms, James W,, WCB #67-167; Affirmed.
Parker, Charlie, WCB #67-870; Affirmed.
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Bogard, Linda, WCB #67-850; Award increased to 25% loss function of
forearm.

Perry, Carl, WCB #67-1061; Affirmed,

Mayes, Jesse J., WCB #67-609; Remanded for award of permanent total
disability.

McCarty, H., A., WCB #67-963; Award increased to 50% loss of use of
right arm.,

Hough, Janice Marie, WCB #67-656; Award increased to 15% loss arm for
unscheduled disability.

McGilvra, Robert D., WCB #67-1122; Award increased to 25% loss arm for
unscheduled,

DeVaul, Vincent S., WCB #67-1103; Award of 33-1/37% loss of use of his
right middle finger; 50% loss of use of his right ring finger; 10%
loss of use of his right thumb for opposition with the right middle
finger, and 10% loss of use of his right thumb for opposition with
the right ring finger.

Edmonds, Francis Wayne, WCB #67-10883 "Claimant, Francis Wayne Edmonds,
is entitled to an award of permanent partial disability of a scheduled
member, his left arm, in the amount of 65% loss function of the left
armj; and an award for the permanent partial disability of an unscheduled
part of his body, his left shoulder, equivalent to 50% loss use of an
arm."

Anderson, James A., WCB #67~217; Affirmed.

Shlim, Harriet, WCB #67-499; Award increased to 25% loss arm for
unscheduled.

Reames, O. L., WCB #871; Langtry-J; "This is an appeal from the decision
of the Workmen's Compensation Board. Claimant was awarded 15% loss
function of an arm for unscheduled disability by the Hearing Officer.
Claimant appealed to the board, claiming that he should have received
50% loss function of an arm for unscheduled disability, 15% hearing
loss and 25% for loss of use of the right arm, The board affirmed.
Awards for loss of hearing and loss of use of the right arm are claimed
in this appeal.

"Claimant testified (Tr. p. 23) that prior to the accident he had
had no difficulty hearing, and that subsequent to the accident he had
difficulty hearing. In a letter to the State Compensation Department,
which has been marked Defendant's Exhibit B, Dr, Petroff states:

It is my belief that hearing impairment can occur from a blow
to the head in certain individuals and in view of this mau's
history, it is felt that at least some of his hearing impair-
ment can be attributed to the injury. * * * ¥ It is, therefore,
believed that his hearing impairment probably exceeds 15% in
total but it would be fair in my belief to assign a 15%
impairment that might be attributed to the injury.

On p. 2 of the order on review, it is stated:
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The real problem in this instance is that even Dr. Petroff
uses the terms that disability 'can be caused' in this manner
and 'a 15% impairment that might be attributed to the injury.'
The words 'might' and 'can' are not equal to probabilities.

"Thus, it would appear that both the Hearing Officer and the
Workmen's Compensation Board concluded that there was no competent
evidence as to the causal relationship between the injury and the
hearing loss. This conclusion seems to be based on the choice of words
used by the doctor in Defendant's Exhibit B. However, it is a reasonable
conclusion from Uris v. Compensation Department, 84 Or. Adv, Sh. 851,
that the use of a particular form of words is not determinative.

"In Uris, in which this trial court was reversed, the testimony
of Dr. Grossman was taken by deposition only, and his reported words
having to do with causal relation were very sketchy. The Supreme
Court held this testimony, combined with that of the claimant, to be

sufficients:

In the compensation cases holding medical testimony unneces=-
sary to make a prima facie case of causation, the distinguish-
ing features are an uncomplicated situation, the immediate
appearance of symptoms, the prompt reporting of the occurrence
by the workman to his superior and consultation with a physidan,
and the fact that the plaintiff was theretofore in good health
and free from any disability of the kind involved. A further
relevant factor is the absence of expert testimony that the
alleged precipitating event would not have been the cause of

the injury.

"In Uris, the question of immediate consultation with medical aid
is referred to, but the necessity for it is somewhat skirted. For
instance, the opinion refers several times to claimant's having gone
to Dr. Gregg Wood immediately after the accident. A fairer statement
would have said that claimant said he went to Dr. Wood, but Dr. Wood
had no record or recollection of such a visit. The quoted language
from Uris is partly in point in the instant case, and the instant
case is partly distinguishable from it.

"This judge as a pro tem. on the Supreme Court wrote the opinion
in Adams v, Compensation Department, infra. With such experience re-
lating to the questions involved here, the best the writer can say is
that it is difficult to find a rule applicable to some causal situa-
tions, and the instant case appears to be one such.

"However, the statement of Dr, Petroff in Defendant's Exhibit B,
taken with the testimony of claimant that prior to the accident he had
no hearing problems, appears to be competent evidence under Uris to
show a causal relationship between the accident and the hearing loss.
This court is not overlooking the Hearing Officer's belief there was
a preexisting hearing loss, but the doctor's testimony is based on the
history as well as his examination, and it does use the word *probably’
in assessing the loss., Cf, Sentilles v, Inter-Caribbean Shipping Corp.,
361 U, S. 107 (1959); Ford v. Blythe Brothers Company, 242 N.,D, 347, 87
S.E,2d 879 (1955); Foley v, Coca-Cola Bottling Co. of St. Louis, 215 S.W.

- 2d 314 (1948); Henderson v. Union Pacific R.R. Co., 189 Or. 145, 219
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P.2d 170 (1950). The Court concludes the disability for hearing

loss should be allowed in the amount indicated by the doctor, namely,
15%.

"Claimant testified (Tr. p. 27) that about a month after this
accident he noticed a tingling sensation in the little finger of the
right hand extending to above the elbow., He further testified (Tr. p.33)
that he first noticed it after a back injury on February 21, 1966.

Dr. Gray's report (Claimant's Exhibit 1) states that this injury is
attributable to the head injury. All together, the evidence does not
indicate that the disability to the arm is connected with the head
injury.

"Under the new act, the Court will not disturb the fact finding of
the Hearing Officer when it is based upon competent evidence., See
Adams v. Compensation Department, 86 Or. Adv. Sh., 597 at 600.

“The decision of the board is affirmed in part and reversed in part.,”

Krewson, Jay Glenn, WCB #67-1179; Bradshaw, J; "It is the Court's opinion
that the Order on Review of the Workmen's Compensation Board dated
March 18, 1968, from which this appeal has been taken, is in error, in
that that Order affirmed the Order of the Hearing Officer entered
January 16, 1968, and which denied claimant's claim for permanent
partial disability.

"The Order of the Board of March 18, 1968, was based upon the fact
that there was substantial competent evidence to support the conclusion
of the original determination as affirmed by the Hearing Officer, and
in that Order the Board stated 'the conclusion of the Hearing Officer
is best supported by the medical report of Dr. Borman of January 26,

1967, setting forth his opinion that the 'symptoms are highly functional',

"This Court finds the Board's Order in error because although there
may be some evidence to support the Order of the Hearing Officer, in this
Court's opinion it is minimal, while on the other hand, it is the opinion
of this Court that the evidence as a whole overwhelmingly is preponderant
in proving some permanent disability of the claimant., In other words, it
is this Court's opinion that the opinion and order of the Hearing Officer
and the Order of the Board are entirely contrary to the evidence in this
case, and that the evidence unquestionably indicates some permanent
partial disability,.

"The opinion and order of the Hearing Officer briefly reviews the
madical opinions in evidence but fails to arrive at a conclusion as to
what that medical evidence indicates., The Hearing Officer then dis-
cusses certain marital relationships of the claimant and points out
that he was a medical corpsman and concludes by stating that these bits
of evidence are signficant and in his opinion claimant's complaints are
either psychogenic or simulated,

'"This Court realizes that the Hearing Officer had the opportunity
of observing the demeanor and attitude of the claimant as a witness and
is entitled to use this observation in determining his credibility and
if he feels, through this observation, that the claimant is unreliable
in his statements, then he should so find. However, this Court can find
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no basis for determining that the claimant's complaints are psycho-
genic or simulated simply because of his marital problems and the
fact that he was a medical corpsman, This is true particularly in
light of the fact that such a finding would be contrary to the other
evidence in the case.

"The Board in its Order on Review refers to the report of Dr.
Borman of January 26, 1967, which the Board felt was the principal
evidence supporting the Hearing Officer's opinion. In that report
Dr, Borman also, because of the nature of the case, suggested that
another orthopedic surgeon, namely Dr. Clarke, be brought into the
case. Dr, Clarke did examine the claimant on February 22, 1967, and
found objective symptoms. Later Dr. Borman after suggesting a myelo-
gram, reported on May 1, 1967, prior to the original date of closing
by the Board, that objective findings were minimal but consistent
and Dr. Borman recommended closing the case with minimal permanent
partial disability.

It would appear therefore to the Court that the Hearing Officer
and Board selected a statement of Dr. Borman out of context that the
symptoms were functional and ignored the fact that he went to great
lengths to determine this man's condition by consulting other doctors
and in the end, he himself recommended closing the case with some
permanent partial disability.

"Dr. Burton in Boise, Idaho, on January 10, 1967, found spasms.
Dr. Heatherington in his reports found subjective symptoms. Finally,
Dr., Clarke on January 3, 1968, was of the opinion that 'there will be
some permanent partial impairment.'

"Therefore, the Court makes the finding that the Board's Order on
Review was in error; that the Hearing Officer's opinion and order was
in error, and the Board's original closing as of April 28, 1967,in not
awarding permanent partial disability, was in error, for the reason
that the great preponderance of evidence in this case shows some perma-
nent partial disability, and that the findings in those instances
were not supported by the evidence presented.

"Based upon this finding the Court concludes that the claimant
is entitled to an award of permanent partial disability on account of
injury to his back equal to 15% loss of an arm."

Bergh, Emma Jeanne, WCB #67-1302; Affirmed.
Stricker, Edwin, WCB #423; Affirmed with additional temporary dis-

ability.

Boorman, Irven S., WCB #67-85; Allen -J; ™"Claimant on April 13, 1966

suffered an accidental injury arising out of and in the course of his
employment while employed by Siuslaw Valley Veneer, Inc. It is un-
disputed that as a direct and proximate result of this accident it was
necessary that the claimant's right eye be surgically removed and that
claimant suffered a serious impairment of his left eye resulting in a
loss of vision of considerable magnitude.
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"Dr, George Mc€allum, one of claimant's treating physicians and
an ophthalmologist, who practices in Eugene, has testified on several
occasions before this court, and the court has had an opportunity to
be exposed to testimony concerning his qualifications and experience,
Dr. McCallum who possesses an unimpeachable reputation in his field, by
special findings and an expressly stated formula rendered his opinion
that the visual efficiency of claimant's left eye was 11.2% and, of
course, an opinion of 100% loss of vision of claimant's right eye,
(Defendant's Exhibit D).

"The Workmen's Compensation Department on October 11, 1966 closed
daimant's claim, and by a process of legerdemain kept within its bosom
and not ascertainable in the record, made an award of 100% loss of
vision to claimant's right eye and 637 loss of vision of claimant's
left eye for a binocular loss of vision of 72%. (Defendant's Exhibit C),

"The claimant requested a hearing before a Hearing Officer of the
Workmen's Compensation Board and the Hearing Officer in his opinion and
order dated August 18, 1967, found that claimant had suffered in ad-
dition to 100% loss of vision to his right eye, a loss of vision of
88.8% of claimant's left eye, a finding in accordance with the report
of Dr. McCallum, In addition the Hearing Officer also found that the
claimant was totally and permanently disabled as a result of his acci-
dent of April 13, 1966, and the disability resulting therefiom,

"The State Compensation Department appealed the decision of the
Hearing Officer and the Workmen's Compensation Board, by its order
dated March 26, 1968, reversed the Hearing Officer on the issue of
permanent total disability, but found in addition to 100% loss of
vision of right eye that claimant had sustained a 78% loss of vision
of his left eye and awarded claimant compensation for a combined
binocular vision loss of 85%. The Workmen's Compensation Board's
determination of the loss of vision of claimant's left eye is based
upon a formula which from the record before the court it is impossible
for counsel for the claimant, counsel for the State Compensation De-
partment, or the court to ascertain whether or not this formula was
the proper formula to apply, or whether or not if the formula was
correct, it was correctly applied.

"Assuming the Workmen's Compensation Board was correct in its
evaluation of loss of vision of claimant's left eye at 78%, under the
provisions of ORS 656,214 (2) (i), an award to the claimant should have
been 83%7% loss of combined binocular vision, instead of 85% loss of
combined binocular vision awarded by the Workmen's Compensation Board.
This error by itself tends to cast some doubt upon the Workmen's Comp-
ensation Board's mathematical ability to accurately compute a loss of
vision. Also the Workmen's Compensation Board has on two different
occasions, and a Hearing Officer of the Workmen's Compensation Board
on a third occasion arrived at entirely different findinzs as to loss
of vision of claimant's left ege, With such inconsistencies appearing
in the record emitting from the Workmen's Compensation Board and a
Hearing Officer thereof, small wonder that a claimant feels compelled to
appeal to the courts to resolve the differences of opinion within the
Workmen's Compensation Board itself,
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"In ascertaining the percentage of loss of vision of claimant's left
eye, this court is faced with almost the same task as was the Supreme
Court of this State in the case of Raymond Romero vs, State Compensation

Department, May s 1968, where the three tribunals which preceeded it

had fixed claimant's disability respectively at 20%, 35%, and 60%. In

Romero, the Supreme Court stated 'without any criteria for judgment

it is impossible to say that any of these percentages is wrong. We

do not have the benefit of any testimony directed to the problem of
fixing the degree of disability' and for the reasons stated in the
opinion adopted the rating made by the Hearing Officer and affirmed by
the Workmen's Compensation Board., The differences between this case and

Romero are (1) that the Hearing Officer and the Workmen's Compensation

Board do not agree as to the percentage of loss of vision of claimant's
left eye sustained as a result of his accidental injury, and (2) the
court has the benefit of Dr. McCallum's report which specifically finds
that clajmant has a visual efficiency of his left eye of 11.2%. Based
upon Dr. McCallum's report, the only competent evidence in the record
as to the percentage of loss of vision of claimant's left eye, this
court finds, as did the Hearing Officer, that claimant has suffered a
loss of vision of his left eyje of 88.8%, which under the formula esta-
blished by ORS 656.214 (2) (i), combined with 100% loss of vision of
claimant's right eye establishes a 91.6% loss of combined binocular
vision,

"In this case the State Compensation Department has advanced two
propodtions in the alternative. (1) That as a result of claimant's
injury and disability he is not in fact permanently incapacitated from
regularly performing work in a gainful and suitable occupation, (2)
and even if he is in fact permanently incapacitated from regularly
performing any work at a gainful and suitable occupation, that, as a
matter of law, as claimant's disability is limited to loss of vision,
and because the claimant has some minimal useful vision in his left
eye, the court cannot make an award of permanent total disability, as
claimant's injury and disability is limited to those parts of the body
(eyes) for which compensation is provided under a schedule of permanent
partial disability,

"The claimant, of course, urges that both contentions of the State
Compensation Department are erroneous.

"In the Matter of the Compensation of Ben Scoggins, Claimant, in
this court, case no. 86810, (WCB case no. 67-92, SDC Claim No. B 12 9549)
the Workmen's Compensation Board stated, 'The Workmen's Compensation
Law schedule of benefits is inflexible. Injuries which are listed such
as feet, hands or eyes may in actuality result in a high degree of un-
employability, but the benefit payment is limited to that set forth by
statute by the specific loss,' This court, in its opinion in the
Scoggins case stated, 'In affirming the order of the Workmen¥s Compen-
sation Board subjected to review in this proceeding, the court does not
necessarily concur with the conclusion of law reached by the Board that
the Workmen's Compensation Law is inflexible. In an appropriate case
when considered together with the workman‘*s age, education, training
and experience and other pertinent factors, injury and disability to
parts of the body for which compensation is provided for what is commonly
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- 97 referred to as scheduled permanent partial disability may well consti- ‘
tute such paralysis or other condition permanently incapacitating the’
workman from regularly performing any work at a gainful and suitable
occupation,' The case of the claimant herein, Irven S. Boorman, is
such a case,

"In construing the provisions of ORS 656,206 (1), which defines
permanent total disability, the court is of the opinion that this
statute provides that a claimant may be totally and permanently dis-
abled as a matter of law or he may be permanently and totally disabled
as a matter of fact.

"If the claimant has suffered a loss, including a preexisting
disability, of both feet or hands, or one foot and one hand, or total
loss of vision, as a matter of law he is permanently totally disabled.

"For example, an accountant, or a lawyer, or a judge who loses
one foot and one hand as the result of an accident arising out of and
in the course of his employment would by statute be entitled to an
award of total permanent disability and yet such an individual as a
matter of fact may well be able to perform all of the duties regularly
required by him in his chosen profession with no loss of income whatso-
ever. This would constitute permanent total disability as a matter of
law., On the other hand, a workman with little education and limited
work experience, training and mental capability, as a result of injury
and disability to part of the body for which compensation is provided
under the schedule designated as permanent partial disability, may in
fact be permanently incapacitated from regularly performing any work
at a gainful and suitable occupation, This constitutes permanent
total disagbility as a matter of fact.

"If the State Compensation Department is correct in its interpre-
tation of the law, if the claimant herein, in addition to 100% loss of
vision of his right eye, and 787% loss of vision of his lefteye (if one
assumes that the Workmen's Compensation Board's order on review of
March 26, 1968, is correct concerning loss of vision and which this court
specifically finds was not correct) had suffered in the same accident
loss by separation of his right leg and 90% loss of use of left leg,
90% loss of use of his right arm and 90% loss of use of his left arm
and was obviously and factually an unemployable hopeless cripple, he
would not be entitled to an award of permanent total disability, If
this is the law, one must agree with the pronouncement of Mr, Bumble
in Charles Dicken's Oliver Twist when he said, 'if the law supposes
that', 'the law is an ass, and idiot.'

"In the opinion of this court the legal propositiom advanced by
the State Compensation Department cannot be supported by reason, logic,
common sense, legislative intent, or statutory construction, and it is
clearly erroneous. That the Workmen's Compensation Law is to be liber-
ally construed on behalf of the injured workman is axiomatic,

"Subsequent to the hearing held before this court in this case
and in fact after this opinion had been written in its proposed final
form, counsel for the State Compensation Department presented to the
court a copy of the opinion of the Supreme Court of this State in the
case of Walter Ray Jones vs, State Compensation Department, May 22, 1968,
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In Jones the court makes reference to the illustration in Kajundzich

vs., SIAC, 164 Or 510, 102 P2d 924, of the equality under the compensation

law as to the compensation to be awarded to the violinist and the ditch
digger each of which have lost fingers in the course of his employment,
even though such injury would differ greatly their respective impairment
of ability to earn a livelihood. Such construction of the compensation
law is correct only if the permanent disability is partial and despite
his permanent disability the workman is still capable of regularly
performing some work at a gainful and suitable occupation.

"The Supreme Court in Jones concedes that the language used in
ORS 656.206 (1) is apparently subjective, but then declines to adopt a
subjective standard in determining whether or not a workman is permanently
totally disabled when his disability is limited to a disability for
which compensation is provided in the statutory schedule for permanent
disability, stating, 'There is nothing in the case at bar to justify
a departure from a settled rule.'

"With all due respect to the present members of the Supreme Court
and their illustrious predecessors this court is of the opinion that
ORS 656.206 (1), establishes both an objective standard and a subjective
standard to be applied in determining whether or not a workman is
permanently totally disabled and has attempted to support such opinion
by the analysis and examples cited herein distinguishing between
permanent total disability as a matter of law and as a matter of fact.

"If upon its review de novo the Supreme Court determines that
claimant is in fact permanently incapacitated from regularly performing
any work at a gainful and suitable occupation as has the Hearing Officer
and this court, ample reasons exist to not only 'justify a departure
from a settled rule' but also to adopt a rule consistent with reason,
logic, statutory construction and the philosophy of the Workmen's
Compensation Law, and to affirm this court's award of compensation to
the claimant of permanent total disability.

"Based upon the entire record before the court, the court specifi-
cally finds that even though claimant's disability concerning his work
ability is limited to a loss of vision, that a combination of the total
loss of vision of claimant's right eye and the fact that claimant has
only minimal remaining vision in his left eye constitutes such paralysis
or other condition permanently’incapacitating the workman from regularly
performing any work at a gainful and suitable occupation when considered
together with the workman's age, education, tra ning and experience and
other pertinent factors, and therefore claimant herein is permanently
and totally disabled. The Hearing Officer's opinion and order contains
an excellent and accurate evaluation of the testimony and the exhibits
which comprise the record herein, which fully support his findings that
the claimant is permanently and totally disabled as a matter of fact,

"As the Supreme Court stated in the Romero case concerning subjec-
tive complaints of pain ' * * * the opportunity to observe the claimant
and the other witnesses is of prime importance. The Hearing Officer is
in a position to make this observation and we are not.,' The position
taken by the Supreme Court in the Romero case supports the concurrence of

this court in its acceptance of the Hearing Officer's finding that claimant

is permanently and totally disabled as a matter of fact.
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"Based upon the foregoing, the order of the Workmen's Compensation
Board dated March 26, 1968 should be reversed and the claim of the
claimant Irven S, Boorman, referred back to the Z%ate Compensation De-
partment and the State Compensation Department be ordered to make an
award of compensation to the claimant of permanent total disability
and to pay to the claimant the benefits therefore as provided by law.

"The court further finds that a reasonable additional attorney fee
to be allowed to claimant's attorneys, Babcock and Ackerman, is a sum
equivalent to 25% of the additional compensation awarded to claimant
by virtue of this appeal, provided however said additional attorney fees
when added to the fee previously allowed herein, the sum total thereof
shall not exceed the sum of $1,500.00, said fee to be a lien upon said
additional compensation and to be paid out of said additional compen-
sation by the State Compensation Department to claimant's attorneys,
Babcock and Ackerman.

"Mr, Ackerman is requested to prepare a judgment order in accordance
with this opinion of the court and the finding made herein, submit the
same to Mr., Malagon for approval as to form and to submit the same to
the court for signature,"

Schaefeér, Melitta, WCB #67-4913 Affirmed.
Birkhans, Vigo, WCB #67-1337; Affirmed.

Seidel, Sandra, WCB #67-712; Reversed for reason that no compensable
claim.

Kociemba, Emil A,, WCB #67-925; Award increased to 75% loss of arm
for unscheduled.

Cox, John M., WCB #67-1105; Affirmed.
Eckert, Wesley, WCB #67-1441; Affirmed.
Walton, Jack Arnold, WCB #67-1132; Affirmed.

Nelson, Melvin C., WCB #67-835; Langtry - J; "This matter is before
the Court for a de novo review of the determination of the Hearing
Officer and the Workmen's Compensation Board of Melvin C. Nelson's claim
on account of injuries to the great toe on a foot. Claimant asserts
that he should be allowed disability for injury affecting the use of
his feet. The testimony of medical experts was to the effect that the
injury was confined to the great toe. Claimant himself asserts that
the pain running into the metatarsal area of his foot has caused him
a disability of the use of the rest of the foot as well as the toe.

The Court has read all of the testimony produced before the Hear-
ing Officer and all of the briefs and arguments submitted by respective
counsel. The Court finds that the receipt in evidence of Damasch Hos=
pital records was not prejudicial, and has some probative value. So
far as precedents are concerned, Graham v. State Industrial Accident
Commission, 164 Or. 626, is most closely in point., In that case the
injury was confined to the thumb and there was no evidence tending to
show injury to the hand or unexpected complications. The Court held
that the injury to the thumb could not be made the basis of injury to
the hand., The Court has reviewed Inthe Matter of the Compensation of
Edward F., Stephens, WCB case No., 67-535, submitted by claimant's
counsel and does not believe that it changes the Graham v, SIAC holding,

-520-




Add to
Page
107

109
109

112

113
113

"In the instant case, this Court does not believe that the evi-
dence produced shows any unexpected complication in the foot from the
injury to the toe = at least, there was a large quantum of evidence

sustaining such a position upon which the Hearing Officer made his
decision which affirmed for the Board.

"The language in Romero v. Compensation Department, 86 Or. Adv.
Sheets 819, is in point:

Under these circumstances we feel that the appraisal made by
the Hearing Officer and which was affirmed by the Board should
be adopted. As counsel for plaintiff at the hearing admitted,
*Much of a disability rating is based, and very properly so, on
the subjective complaints of pain.' In this subjective area
the opportunity to observe the claimant and the other witnesses
is of prime importance. The Hearing Officer is in a position
to make this observation and we are not. Moreover, although
we must review the record de novo, we are entitled to take into
account the administrative agency's expertise which develops
out of dealing with hundreds of similar cases. As has been
pointed out, ‘'industrial commissions generally become expert
in analyzing certain uncomplicated kinds of medical facts
(and we would add none-medical facts also), particularly
those bearing on industdal causation, disability, malinger-
ing and the like.' 2 Larson's Workmen's Compensation, 79.53,
p. 303 (1961). Further, it would seem that in the type of case
we have before us, where the criteria for appraising disabil-
ity is at best vague and highly subjective, the administrative
agency should have some leeway in developing, if possible,
a\pattern of decision-making by a comparison of the many cases
which are presented to it,

"See also the concluding language in Adams v, Compensation
Department, 86 Or. Adv. Sheets, 597. The language on pp. 753, 754
and 755 of Coday v, Willamette Tug & Barge, 86 Or. Adv, Sheets, is not
inconsistent - at least in the context used here, with the language
quoted above.

"For these reasons the Court finds that the Hearing Officr's deter-
minations are correct, and concludes that his award is justified., This
memorandum decision shall be filed, and inasmuch as the defendant has
demanded that the Court make special findings of fact and state separ-
ately its conclusions of law therefrom, the memorandum decisions shall
stand as the same. If the defendant wants anything more definitive,
it may submit what it wants to see if the Court will sign it."

Philibert, Bobby Gene, WCB #67-1257; Affirmed.

Osler, Louis E., WCB #67-916; Award increased to 25% loss arm for
unscheduled and 207% loss leg.

Myers, Jerry G., WCB #68-67; "The advance payment of money to the
claimant did not constitute a waiver of any rights he may have to a
hearing."

Baigert, Conrad F., WCB #67-963; Affirmed.
Wunder, Gladys M,, WCB #67-1046; Remanded for consideration on merits

of cerebral-vascular accident,
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Lewis, Ira C., WCB #67-1016;

Haney, W, J., WCB #67-1064;
McClendon; Henry E.,

Lunsford, Richard L.,
Mayes, Edward Thomas,
WCB #67-6683

Campbell, Emmett D,, WCB #67-701;
Westfall, Burlin O,,

Jordan, Robert G.,

WCB #67-1509;

Affirmed.
Affirmed.
WCB #67-10443

WCB #67-987;

WCB #67-1365;

Affirmed.

Affirmed.
Affirmed,

Affirmed,
Affirmed.

" ..the Demurrer...is sustained

and the matter be referred back to the Workmen's Compensation Board,

and/or the State Compensation
Winburn, Marion Lee,

Berglund, Gerald B,,
for unscheduled,

Dement, Arthur, WCB #67-1296;

Washburn, Norman O,, WCB #838;
compression fracture at D-12,

WCB #67-705;
WCB #67-1065;

Trent, Tobe,
Snead, Lawrence,

Cumpston, James Arthur,
Chaffee, Floyd G., WCB #67-1165;

WCB #67-1278;
WCB #67-1271;

WCB #67-

Department for further proceedings.”
Affirmed,

Award increased to 40% loss arm

Lumbar award increased to 10% loss arm,

Remanded for consideration of effect of

Award of permanent total allowed.

Award increased to permanent total.

924;
Additional temporary disability;

Right leg award increased to 25%.

unscheduled award increased to 30%.

Wershey, Mildred L., WCB #67-628; Award "of 907 loss of function of her
right arm and 25% loss of function of an arm for unscheduled disability.,"

Schafroth, Arthur L., WCB #67-12063 Affirmed.
Bell, John C., WCB #67-1391; Unscheduled award increased to 40%,

Fitzhugh, Lloyd E., WCB #68-286;
Olson, Robert O,, WCB #5043
Hill, John H., WCB #67-1609;
WCB #67-769;
WCB #67-969;
WCB #67-677;

Wrightsman, Yvonne,
Levesque, Gilbert,
Bean, Clifford So,

Risener, Charles C,,

WCB #67-13613

Dismissed,

Affirmed,
Affirmed,

Affirmed,
Claim ordered accepted.
Additional attorney fees allowed,

Affirmed,
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PREFACE

It is our intention to provide a ready reference to Workmen's Compensation
decisions on the administrative level in a coherent and organized manner.
While Supreme Court decisions on Workmen's Compensation are readily availablg,
they represent only the tip of the iceberg. Many litigated cases never go
beyond the administrative level, but there is no feasible way for the practi-
tioner to keep abreast of administrative decisions.

We have edited, summarized and comprehensively indexed the cases which
have been appealed to the Board. Both the original Hearing Officer's Order
and the Board's Order have been reviewed in preparing these summaries. Over
2,000 pages of opinions have been edited to appear in this volume,

Every effort has been made to capture all significant facts, issues and
reasons, but no doubt, as with any major editing job, omissions, and perhaps
even misleading statements may have crept into our work.

In cases involving permanent partial disability, an attempt has been made
to describe both the nature of the injury and the award. Where adequately
concise statements have been found in the original opinions, they have been
quoted directly or paraphrased, However, we recommend consultation with the
original opinions in situations where one word, sentence or implication could
be critical. If you have no other access to them, these opinions are available
through our offices for a handling charge of $2.00.

To enhance the value of this service as a research tool, every effort has
been expended to index the cases, although some still defy logical classifi-
cation.

We are well aware that the most recent case reported is August 1968, It
was our desire to continue the publication from the point the Oregon Workmen's
Compensation Reporter, published by the Oregon Association of Defense Counsel,
ceased, Our binder, however, limited us to about 200 pages.

We are deeply indebted to the Association and to Mr. Daryll Klein for
their cooperation in the launching of this service. We are hopeful another
volume prepared by early fall will bring the cases up to date, and thereafter
we will be able to keep current,

It should also be directed to your attention that some case appearing
herein may have been reversed or modified by appeal to the courts. We have
no facilities to ascertain these results, but we have noted in the index which
cases have been appealed and the county in which the appeal has occurred.

Robert VanNatta

January 1969 Fred VanNatta



WCB #689 August 17, 1967

Margaret K. Walsh, Claimant.
H. L. Pattie, Hearing Officer.
Clifford Olsen, Claimant's Atty.

Harold W. Adams, Defense Atty. ////
Claimant, a forty-five year-old secretary and clerk-typist, suffered lacera-
tions of her leg as a result of stepping into a hole in the floor., The
injuries were variously described as deep and severe and as superficial. She
missed only part of a day's work, returning to work the following day and
working steadily thereafter, other than time required for medical treatment.
About two months later she was discharged from her employment. She testified
that this was because she missed three hours per day, three days per week for
treatment, but her employer claims she was discharged for being inefficient and
undependable. Hearing Officer found no compensation payable to claimant
immediately following the injury as the employer kept her on full pay; however,
claimant was awarded temporary total disability from date of her discharge.

WCB reversed an award of attorney fees, holding that the fact that the employer
continued to pay full wages during the absences of the employee, when the
employer could have paid temporary total disability rates instead, indicates
that there was no unreasonable resistance on the part of the employer.

WCB #67-29  August 17, 1967

Kelly L, Seratt, Claimant,

H. L. Seifret, Hearing Officer.

S. E. Scoville, Claimant's Atty.
Owen E., McAdams, Jr., Defense Atty.

Claimant slipped and fell suffering a lower back injury. Both a myelogram
and a lumbar laminectomy were performed. Claimant was able to return to work
about two months later, and was transferred to light work and awarded a 25%
disability. Claimant continued to suffer pain in his lower back, making it
difficult for him to work. Dr. Molter found some early degenerative changes
of claimant's spine, and recommended a lumbo sacral fusion, although he felt
that the claimant could perform light work. Dr. Rockey recommended a lumbar
spinal fusion, but would not urge same, because of his concern about residual
impairment of function in the back. Claimant was awarded an additional 15%
disability. He refused further surgery, and demands permanent total disability.
The claim was denied because total disability contemplates a disability of
such magnitude as to render the one no longer capable of regularly performing
any work at a gainful and suitable occupation, hence the fact that the workman
cannot return to his former occupation doesn't prove permanent total dis-
ability when the workman can regularly perform lighter work,

Ed. Note: Upon hearing and review, there is substantial discussion concerning
claimant's refusal to undergo surgery upon his spine. The Board recognizes
the claimant's right to refuse surgery, but concludes his fears are not based
upon medical records. Refusal to have surgery must be considered when extent
of disability is determined.



WCB #67-71 August 17, 1967

William Aarnie, Claimant.
Page Pferdner, Hearing Officer.
Quintin B, Estell, Defense Atty.

Claimant received first and second degree burns to his face when a can of
ether used for starting diesel engines exploded after being placed too close
to a warming fire. Injury occurred on December 1, 1966; claimant filed
request for hearing on January 19, 1967, and he received a notice of claim
acceptance on January 26, 1967.

The first issue regards the computation of the temporary total disability.
Claimant was not hospitalized and his total disability lasted for less than
fourteen days. The first three days under ORS 656,210(14) are to be con-
strued as working days. This is including the day of the injury, since he
left work that day. Claimant is entitled to compensation for normal working
days missed thereafter, which in this case is four. Under Workmen's Compen-
sation Board Administrative Order No. 9, issued November 14, 1966, claimant
is entitled to monthly benefit of $225 prorated for four working days, which
is $41.43. This is exactly what the claimant was paid. Penalty for late
payment is allowed because no payment was made before the fourteenth day
after notice of claim. The fact that State Compensation Department did not
receive the physician's report until 29 days after the injury, and did not
receive complete information on the accident report until 51 days after the
accident, is no excuse, However, under ORS 656.382(1) attorney fees are not
allowable, because the Department paid the compensation as soon as it was
apprised of the claim, and thus, did not resist the claim at all, and if
there is no resistance, there can be no unreasonable resistance.

WCB #599 August 18, 1967

Lawrence E. George, Claimant.

H. L. Seifert, Hearing Officer.
No Claimant's Atty.

Carlotta Sorensen, Defense Atty.

Claimant, an engineer of the State Highway Department, went on a four-day
business trip to Eastern Oregon., Claimant had been in good health for a long
time, but on the way back from Eastern Oregon he experienced moderately severe
abdominal cramping pains and diarrhea., Claimant had eaten in several resta-
urants during the trip. The medical evidence was conflicting. Dr. Steinfeld,
the treating physician, first diagnosed claimant's condition as rheumatoid
arthritis, but after further consideration, stated that it was probable that
the claimant's illness and resulting hospitalization were entirely the result
of salmonella infection., Traveling employees usually are protected by Workmen's
Compensation coverage when the injury has its origin in a risk created by the
necessity of sleeping and eating away from homej hence, if claimant in fact
contracted the salmonella infection in the course of the trip, it will be
considered to have arisen out of and in the course of employment., The circum-
stances here substantiate claimant's contention, that he contracted the
poisoning on the trip. He had had annual checkups during prior years and was
in good health until this trip. It would be an impossible burden to cast



upon a travelling employee, the duty to prove where in his journeys he was
subjected to the poisoning. It is sufficient if, in retrospect, it can be
said from the course of events, that the salmonella poisoning was probably
contracted while traveling in the course of employment.

WCB #67-119 August 18, 1967

Fred W. Voigt, Claimant.

George W. Rode, Hearing Officer.
Richard Kropp, Claimant's Atty.
Earl Preston, Defense Atty.

Claimant is 61 years of age and has an extensive history of back trouble,

He testified that he had had no symptoms from October 15, until the date of
his injury, November 23, 1966, On this date he put a dividing head on his
milling machine, weighing approximately 90 to 100 pounds. He stated that he
felt a terrific pain at the base ¢T his back around his belt line., He testi-
fied that he suffered considerable pain over the weekend, but worked on Monday.
On Tuesday he went to the hospital, but did not tell Dr., Williams of the job
incident for the reason that he had taken considerable pain pills and his

mind was somewhat confused at the time. The first knowledge the production
manager received of this injury was on December 9, 1966, when the claimant's
wife came into the office to pick up a pay check, The explanation for not
reporting it sooner was that the claimant and his wife were under the impres-
sion that unless the industrial accident was witnessed, it could not be com-
pensable. The hearing officer dismissed the claim for want of proof, but the
WCB reversed holding that when an episode is unwitnessed, the decision must
turn upon testimony of the claimant, whether that testimony is accepted, and
the various circumstances such as observations of other persons, medical re-
ports, and whether the conduct of the claimant with respect to reporting the
injury is consistent with having suffered the injury. The Board felt that the
Hearing Officer had given undue weight to the delay in reporting the accident.

WCB #67-3  August 18, 1967

Maury Gene Luck, Claimant.

H. L. Seifert, Hearing Officer.
E. B. Sahlstrom, Claimant's Atty.
Earl Preston, Defense Atty.

The deceased worked with equipment loading trucks and on occasion ate his

lunch sitting in a truck operated by a fellow employee. On the day in quess
tion, the fellow employee drove the truck a half mile to a grocery store,

where the claimant purchased items to add to his lunch, While sitting at the
grocery store in the truck, the decedant apparently choked while eating a
potato chip, and fell from the truck, He received head injuries from which he
subsequently died. There were no facilities for lunch at the job site, and the
men usually ate in the trucks. It was. permissable for the men to eat off the
job site and to eat in these trucks. The Hearing Officer denied the claim,
holding that the injury was out of the course of employment. A compensable
injury is an accidental injury...arising out of and in the course of employment
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...0ORS 656.,002(6)., Two conditions must be met before a workman can be en-
titled to compensation under the Act: The injury must both arise out of an

in the course of employment. The words are used conjunctively and therefore
both elements must exist, for neither alone is sufficient, The words "out

of" point to the origin or the cause of the accident and are descriptive of
character or quality (Larsen v. SIAC 135 or 137), If the injury can be seen
to have followed a natural consequence of the work, and to have been contem-
plated by a reasonable person familiar with the whole situation, as a result of
the exposure occasioned by the nature of the employment, then it arose "out of
employment", but it excludes an injury which cannot be fairly traced to the
employment as a contributing prosimate cause, and which comes from a hazard to
which the workman would have been equally exposed apart from the employment.
Stuhr v, SIAC, 186 Or 629, P2d 450).

The phrase "in the course of employment'" points to the time, place, and circum-
stances under which the addident took place, that is, the circumstances under
which the accident arises in the course of employment when it occurs within a
period of employment at a place where the employer reasonably may be in per=
formance of his duty, as where the employee reasonably may be in the perfor-
mance of his duty and while he is fulfilling these duties or engaged in some-
thing incidental thereto. (Stuhr v. SIAC, supra).

Consideration will first be directed as to whether or not the accident in this
case arose "out of" the employment.

There must be some causal relation between the employment and the injury, and
the causative danger must be peculiar to the work and not common to the neigh-
borhood. (Snyder Workmen's Compensation Text, Section 1633). Ordinarily when
the lunch period is not subject to the employer's control or restricted in any
way, and the employee is free to go where he will at that time, if he is in-
jured on the public street off the premises of the employer, the injury does
not arise out of the employment. (Snyder Workmen's Compensation Text, Section
1634). In Schwartz v. Industrial Commission, 379 111, 139, 39 NE 2d 980 (1942)
claimant was poisoned by food from an outside restaurant, Here there was found
to be no connection between the employment of decedent and ingestion of the
food. The causative danger, the food, was not peculiar to the work or inci-
dental to the employment because it did not belong to, or was it in any way
connected with, what the decedent had to do in fulfilling his labor contract.
The food poisoning was held to be in the course of, but not arising out of

the employment and therefore was not compensable. Any injury arises "out of”
the employment when there is apparent to the rational mind upon consideration
between the conditions under which the work is required to be performed and the
resulting injury, Under this test, if the injury can be seen to have followed
a natural incident of the work and to have been contemplated by a reasonable
person familiar with the whole situation as a result of the exposure occasioned
by the nature of the employment, then it arises '"out of" the employment, But

it excludes an injury which cannot fairly be traced to the employment as a con-
tributing proximal cause, and which comes from a hazard to which the workman
would have equally been exposed apart from the employment,

An injury arises "out of" employment when it is reasonably apparent from all
circumstances that a causal connection exists between the conditions under which
the employee's work is required to be done and the resultant injury, and it must
be the rational consequence of some hazard connected with the employee's duties.

e



(Sweeny v, Sweeny Tire Stores Co., (Mo) 49 SW2d 205), The evidence in the in- J
stant case shows that decedent was permitted to select his own eating place and

he had the discretion, within limits, to choose his own time and place for dinner,

The Hearing Officer found no connection between the decedent's employment and

the ingestion of food. The causative danger, the food,was not peculiar to the

work or incidental to the employment, as it did not belong to, nor was it in any

way connected with what the deceased had to do in fulfilling his labor contract.

WCB #855 August 22, 1967

Loren B. Freeman, Claimant.

H. L. Seifert, Hearing Officer,
Theodore R, Conn, Claimant's Atty.
Earl Preston, Defense Atty.

The claimant decedent was regularly employed in the Pendleton area by the employer
we here identify simply as Rockhill, Rockhill contracted with another employer,
here identified as Vail, whereby Rockhill, Freeman and Rockhill's -equipment were
used in the performance of work for Vail near Chemult, Oregon. Rockhill and the
decedent were placed on the payroll of the Vail Company. Decedent continued to
service Rockhill's equipment and was provided agreed transportation to and from
the Vail work site by his regular employer, Rockhill, It was while riding with
Rockhill back to their temporary living quarters that a collision occurred, re-
sulting in death to Freeman. Some deviation from the work site had been made to
discuss a work cessation with other workers, but the trip back to living quarters
had resumed at the time of the fatal injury. The Board specifically ruled that
the detour to Chemult was without legal significance, The Hearing Officer had
ruled that Freeman was not in the course of employment. The Board concludes that
pursuant to the cases of Brazeale v, SIAC, 190 Or 565, Morey v. Redifer, 204 Or
194, and Penrose v. Mitchell Bros. Crane Division, Inc, 84 Adv. 651(656-7), 426
P2d 861, the decedent, Freeman, was in the general employment of Rockhill, and
the fact that Freeman was actually paid by Vail, did not remove Freeman from
being in course of employment for Rockhill at the time of the accidental injury.
The Board further concludes that the decedent, in riding with his regular em-
ployer, according to an agreed arrangement with that employer, was in the course
of employment and was not furthering his own interest, as though it was a normal
trip to and from work outside the scope of employment., It is, perhaps, signifi-
cant that both Rockhill and decedent were being paid a $4.50 travel allowance,
WCB here reversed the Hearing Officer's finding of no compensible injury and
granted compensation and a reasonable attorney fee of $750.

WCB #864 August 22, 1967

Ernie Manthe McBride, Claimant.
H. L., Siefert, Hearing Officer.
Herbert B, Galton, Claimant's Atty,
James A. Blevins, Defense Atty.

This is an occupational disease claim for a loss of hearing. Claimant had
been an operating engineer for over 25 years and had been around noisy machi-
nery for over 40 years. There was a report of some hearing loss in 1960, but
no audiogram was performed, From August 15 to September 5, 1966, claimant



operated a D-8 Cat with a broken exhaust stack, which caused excessive noise,
An examination on September 10, 1966, by Dr. Young revealed that claimant had

a purulent otitis media (infection) of the left ear. It was Dr. Young's
opinion that noise would not cause infection of the middle ear, Claimant,
complaining of a general decrease in hearing and tinnitus, obtained an audio-
gram which revealed a bilateral sensori-neural type hearing loss (this involves
the high tones especially, and is of the noise-damage configuration.) Discrimi=
nation scores were 68% for the left ear and 807 for the right ear, and his
hearing impairment between 15-20%. The Hearing Officer attributed the hearing
loss to the middle ear infection and relied on Dr. Young's opinion that same
would not be caused by noise, and therefore denied the claim, The Medical
Board of Review held otherwise, ruling that although claimant had worked at a
noisy occupation for at least 25 years and has had symptoms of acoustic trauma
due to noise on at leat one occasion in the past, it was the opinion of the
Medical Board that the patient "suffered an aggravation of this condition by
exposure to extremely loud noise during a period of about two weeks from the
middle of August until the first of Sentember, 1966," It was a further
opinion of the Medical Board, that the disability was 15%, WCB allowed $500
attorney fees,

WCB #67-45 August 24, 1967

Sherman Smith, Claimant.

George W. Rode, Hearing Officer.
Richard Allen, Claimant's Atty,
Owen McAdams, Defense Atty,

Claimant is a 76 year-~old clerk in the Goodwill Store in Salem, A fellow
employee observed the claimant in a dazed condition, and further observed

him talking incoherently., He was taken to the hospital and the condition
continued for some six weeks. The condition was apparently caused by a vas-
cular insufficiency, i. e. an insufficient supply of blood to the brain. This
could have been caused by a small stroke, but there was no clinical evidence
to this effect. Dr., Sanders, the treating physician, testified that it was
some six weeks after the accident before he was able to get a story out of the
claimant as to what happened. At this time the Claimant said that he had lost
his balance while handling a bundle of rugs and had fallen backwards, striking
his spine at a point midway between his shoulders on a sharp corner of the
table, This alleged fall was unwitnessed. The Hearing Officer denied the claim
upon a finding that the claimant's memory was somewhat confused and the physi-
cal facts wouldn't permit the accident to have happened exactly as he said it
did. The WCB reversed the finding that there was medical testimony, that it
was probable that the claimant fell as alleged, and that the fall preceded and
contributed to the stroke or cranial blood deficiency, and. that confusion and
delay in relating the story is consistent with this theory. The Board further
holds that, even if the fall was from unknown causes, compensation should be
granted, because it occurred at a time and place where employment created

what is generally known as a positional risk. Attorney fees of $600 allowed.



WCB #123 August 24, 1967

Myrnaloy V, McGill, Claimant.

Page Pferdner, Hearing Officer.
Edwin A, York, Claimant's Atty.
Gerald C, Knapp, Defense Atty.

The claimant had, what appeared to be, a minimal injury in stepping out of a
trailer and losing her balance. Medical reports throughout a year and a half
of treatment recite bizarre symptoms and numerous subjective complaints.,
‘Efforts at placing her back to work proved fruitless and raised grave doubts
about claimant's desire to return to employment. It appears that the thought
or prospect of either home work or return to employment produces pain in areas
of the spine not involved in the original claim. Hearing Officer disbelieved
claimant's testimony of permanent partial disability and nothing else in the
record supported same, so claim denied and WCB affirmed same,

WCB #67-366 August 24, 1967

Eugene R. Mace, Jr, Claimant,
Page Pferdner, Hearing Officer,
Don R. Wilson, Claimant's Atty,
Gerald C, Knapp, Defense Atty,

Claimant appeals from a denial of his back injury. He was caused to jump

from a twelve-foot stepladder and lost less than three days work. There was no
initial claim of back injury. About three months later, while reaching for his
lunch box, he felt an excruciating pain in his back, and about three months
after this he attributed his back problem to his fall six months earlier,

There was no other explanation for the injury., The Hearing Officer denied, and
the WCB affirmed claim for back injury. Although there is no doubt that the
claimant suffers from a low back pain radiating into his legs, claimant failed
to sustain his burden of showing a causal connection,

WCB #67-204 August 24, 1967

John L, Borland, Claimant.

H, L. Pattie, Hearing Officer.

R. P. Smith, Claimant's Atty,

James P, Cronan, Jr., Defense Atty.

Claimant is 60 years of age and has been working in a hospital, On November 1,
1966, he was transferred to an adult ward, where his duties included lifting
patients into and out of bed, Claimant worked nine days in November and nine
days in December. A medical examination in January revealed a right inguinal
hernia which was duly reported to his employer, but the claim forwarded to the
Department showed only a hiatus hernia, and the employer showed no record of
injury, The Department denied the claim. The Hearing Officer ordered the claim
accepted and allowed penalties and attorney fees., Claimant sustained a weaken=
ing in his inguinal area or groin area, that probably developed over a period

of time, but the exact time is unknown, according to the Hearing Officer's
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findings. This general weakening made him susceptible to an inguinal hernia,
which was probably triggered around November 15, 1966, by the lifting of
patients in the Ward. Also notice of the inguinal hernia by the employer is
considered notice by the Department. WCB affirmed.

WCB #93 August 28, 1967

Evalena Mae Storm, Claimant,

George W. Rode, Hearing Officer,
Charles W, Creighton, Claimant's Atty,
Harold Adams, Defense Atty.

Claimant suffered what is apparently a whiplash injury, when the car in which
she was riding was struck from the rear, This is an appeal from the State
Compensation Department award of a permanent partial disability award equal to
the loss of use of 50% of an arm, The Hearing Officer sustained this award,
but the WCB with consent of counsel heard additional medical testimony and
increased the award to total and permanent disability. The Board's reasoning
was that the workman was a good worker before the accident, She was employed
by the State of Oregon, which has over 22,000 employees, yet the workman had
been unemployed for over three years, and the state had not been able to find
regular and suitable employment for her., WCB considers this strong evidence
that workman is unemployable, anda such it is not in keeping with a finding of
a partial disability, The workman has suffered from a total disability which
has for three years not yielded to treatment and such must be found to be a
permanent and total disability., When and if the claimant becomes reemployable
in regular and suitable employment, the matter can be reconsidered to then
award a disability which is permanent but partial. Attorney fees allowed.

WCB #892 August 29, 1967

Thomas Burk, Claimant,

Harold W, Adams, WCB Atty,

Peter R, Blyth, Claimant's Atty.,
Thomas S, Moore, Employer's Atty,

Claimant's claim for injuires was denied by the defendant employer, contending
that it is engaged in farming or work incidental thereto within the meaning of
ORS 656,090, and is therefore not subject to the Workmen's Compensation Act,
Employer did not comply or attempt to comply with the Act. The employer was
operating as an independent contractor and was in the business of providing
pickers to harvest farmers' crops and providing transportation therefore,
Employer had no interest in the land or the crops. Employer was licensed as

a farm labor contractor by the State of Oregon Bureau of Labor, The claimant’s
duties included supervision of the pickers and driving a bus. The Hearing
Officer ruled that this was an ORS 656.090 occupation as ownership of the land
or crop is not necessary, and picking a crop and transporting pickers is surely
farming. WCB affirmed, commenting that intent of the Legislature was to exempt
farming from the Act, and that the Board should not interfere with this intent
by making technical exceptions.



WCB #692 August 29, 1967

Mary J. Edington, Claimant,
George W, Rode, Hearing Officer.,
Garret Romaine, Claimant's Atty,
Harold Adams, Defense Atty,

Claimant appeals from an award allowing no permanent partial disability,
Claimant had received an injury to her head and shoulders when a trap door fell
on her, She testifies to experiences of pain and limitation of motion. Two
medical reports indicate no permanent partial disability and one report indi-
cates a chronic arthritis and a 15% disability, but is completely devoid of
details upon which the estimate was made. The Hearing Officer dismissed the
claim for want of proof, holding that the complaints appear to be subjective in
nature; there was no showing that the arthritis, if it exists, has any rela~
tionship to the injury; there is no medical showing of loss of motion in any
of the joints; and that testimony only established a certain amount of pain
which didn't interfere with her employment and her ability to earn a living,
WCB affirmed, adding that pain, per se, is not the basis of award of permanent
partial disability. It is only the disabling effects thereof which may be
compensated.

WCB #811 August 29, 1967

Sandra Elliott, Claimant,

H. L. Pattie, Hearing Officer,

R, Dale Kneeland, Claimant's Atty,
Richard Bemis, Defense Atty,

Claimant suffered a back injury, while carrying a twenty-pound box of coils
Claimant was still suffering pain over four months later, and the treating
physician proposed surgery. The insurance carrier protested the proposed
operation, but the treating physician performed the surgery anyway, and it
was a success. The physician testified that the claimant required the opera-
tion, and that it was not performed to cure a functional overlay, notwith-
standing the fact that no herniated disc was found during the operation. The
Hearing Officer terminated temporary toml disability without permanent partial
disability and without payment of medical services as of the date of the
operation., The WCB reversed, holding that the employer or insurer has no
power to direct the medical care of a treating doctor. The Board can suspend
compensation for a claimant's refusal to undergo reasonable surgery, but not
for possibly unnecessary surgery. The insurance carrier must pay the bills
and the compensation, nonetheless, and its remedy is to proceed against the
erring doctor for malpractice, ORS 656,583, Even if the doctor was guilty of
malpractice, the employer or carrier would be liable for the claimant for all
of the consequences of the accident including the malpractice. Wimer v,
Miller, 235 Or 25.



WCB #785 August 29, 1967

Henry Sminia, Claimant.

H. L, Pattie, Hearing Officer.

Darrell L. Cornelius, Claimant's Atty.
Gerald C, Knapp, Defense Atty,

Claimant, a fifty-six year-old grocery clerk, was struck by the handle of a
grocery cart, causing him a fracture of the nose and severe bleeding. He has
already been awarded temporary total disability for his time lost from work,
but seeks permanent partial disability, The Hearing Officer found no physical
impairment as the result of the injury. Dr. Doyle found "a mild nasal deformity
which.....partly and possibly all" preexisted this injury, no internal nasal
disease, and he felt that reassurance and possible short-term use of an oral
antihistamine decongestant would solve the problem, WCB affirmed the finding
of no permanent partial disability. The Board comments that "much contention
is made, that a slightly reddened skin constitutes a cosmetic defect, which
entitled the claimant to an award., If the claimant concludes that the Board
has heretofore ruled that cosmetic injuries, per se, are compensible, the Board
herewith disavows any such interpretation of the law. Permanent disabilities
must be those known to surgery to be permanent partial disability."” Cosmetic
defects are not compensated,

WCB #67-189 August 30, 1967

Bobby Gene Philibert, Claimant,
George W. Rode, Hearing Officer,
E, B, Sahlstrom, Claimant's Atty.,
Wayne Williamson, Defense Atty,

Claimant was struck in the upper left quadrant of the abdomen by a board which
kicked back from a saw. The claimant sustained a lumbosacral strain and lost
one day from work. The question present here is whether lower back pains, which
appeared some two months later are AOE/COE. Claimant had a history of back
trouble, and two years previous, had received a compression fracture of L4,
However, Dr. Royal's uncontradicted testimony, taken as a whole, unequivocally
established that most recent accident did materially worsen claimant's back
condition, The Hearing Officer found that claimant had met the burden of
proving by competent medical evidence, that the accident was a material contri-
buting cause of his condition. Attorney fees allowed.

Ed. Note: The record of this case was somewhat confused and the extent of
disability; the only ruling being that there was additional disability resulting
from the board accident.



WCB #67-505 August 31, 1967

Elbert E. Thompson, Claimant,

J. David Kryger, Hearing Officer.

Elmer Sahlstrom, Claimant's Atty, !
John McCulloch, Defense Atty,

Claimant suffered a fractured left pelvis after being struck by a log on
December 22, 1966, His recovery was satisfactory, and he received no medical
treatment after February 27, 1967, On May 23, 1967, he commenced work at
Huntington Shingle Co., where his duties consisted of pulling on the planer
chain, Claimant complains of lower back pains during the latter part of the
working day, and says that he is wery fatigued and tired after a day's work.
The medical reports indicate that no permanent disability exists, and appar-
ently the symptoms do not interfere with his work. On this basis, it was
determined that there was no permanent disability,

WCB #681 August 31, 1967

James D. Woosley, Claimant.

John F. Baker, Hearing Officer.

D. R. Dimick, Claimant's Atty.
James P, Cronan, Jr., Defense Atty.

Claimant suffered first, secondand third degree burns about the face, neck,
head, arms, right hand and back, resulting from hot ore, while working for
Hanna Nickel Smelting Co. After several weeks' loss, claimant returned to

the same job he held before the injury, and is performing his work satisfac-
torily, The issue is permanent partial disability. Dr, Resner's examination
found, with regard to the right hand and arm, a slight limitation of the
extension of the fingers of the right hand as compared to the left, diminished
contractile strength on the right as compared to the left, pain on pressure of
the fingers to the palmar surface on the right, a 20-degree loss of wrist flex-
ion, and a l0-degree loss of flexion of the right elbow joint. The Hearing
Officer found all of this equal to 10% loss function of the right arm. The
Hearing Officer denied compensation for well-healed scars on the front of both
knees, which were painful on pressure and in kneeling or squatting. There was
no restriction of motion. The WCB modified the award to 15% of the loss of
the function of an arm, and for the residual tenderness of the knees awarded

a permanent disability equal to the loss of use of 5% of each leg.,

WCB #67-315  August 31, 1967

Ethel M, Wasson, Claimant.
H, L, Pattie, Hearing Officer.
Dan O'Leary, Claimant's Atty.
Clayton Hess, Defense Atty.

Claimant, a thirty-two year-old fry cook, after working in a restaurant for

two and one-half months, filed a claim alleging "contact derm, hands," The
claim was accepted as an occupational disease claim, and temporary total
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disability payments were made. On November 25, 1966, the treating physician
reported that the estimated length of further treatment would be one month.
Upon failure to receive any further word from the doctor, payments were dis-
continued on December 15, 1966, For this stoppage the Department was assessed
penalties for late payment. Temporary total disability payments should have
continued until reports showed, that the claimant's condition is medically
stationary, or showed that she had been released to return to her regular em-
ployment, or showed that she had actually returned to work. The Hearing Of-
ficer further found, that the claimant sustained an occupational disease of
contact dermatitis, and that claimant has a continuing sensitivity to deter-
gents and other cleaning compounds used in and about restaurants, and this con-
dition is expected to continue, and that the claimant has sustained a permanent
partial disability consisting of sensitized skin condition, which disables her
from indulging in general restaurant work, and that, whereas this excludes her
from employment in the only field in which she has any experience or special
training, claimant is entitled to an award equivalent to 10% loss of the right
forearm and 10% loss of the left forearm., Attorney fees allowed., The claimant
filed a motion, seeking to strike the review of the Hearing Officer upon the
grounds, that it is the State Compensation Department, which characterized the
claim as involving an occupational disease, The Hearing Officer founded liabil-
ity upon occupational disease, The WCB, after claimant's motion, suggested that
claimant make an election, if the basis of the motion was that the claim was
for accident, instead of occupational disease, WCB denied the motion as the
claimant refused to elect, and had not requested review of the Hearing Officer
order classifying the claim as one of occupational disease,

WCB #67-92 August 31, 1967

Ben Scoggins, Claimant,

John F, Baker, Hearing Officer.
William A, Babcock, Claimant's Atty,
Earl M. Preston, Defense Atty.

The claimant, a sixty-three year-old logger, with an eighth-grade education,
suffered a foot injury, which produced some symptoms in the knee while healing.
Claimant has not worked since the injury and has since applied for retirement
benefits under Social Security, The State Compensation Department awarded

75% loss of use of the right foot. The Hearing Officer increased this to 80%
loss of use of the leg. The WCB affirmed noting that the schedule of benefits
under the Workmen's Compensation Law is inflexible. Injuries which are listed,
such as feet, hands or eyes may in actuality result in a high degree of unem-
ployability, but the benefit payment is limited to that set forth by statute for
the specific loss (Chebot v. SIAC, 106 Or 660). Hence, total disability may
not be awarded.
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WCB #757 September 1, 1967

Samuel N, Dupuis, Claimant.

John F. Baker, Hearing Officer.
William A, Babcock, Claimant's Atty.
Earl M, Preston, Defense Atty.

Claimant appeals for award of 35% loss of function of the right forearm,

He is a 35 year-old logger, and was injured when a chain saw cut deeply into
his right wrist. The ulna nerve was completely severed and many vessels and
tendons, including extensor tendons to the index, middle ring and little fin-
gers. Claimant is right-handed, and testified of greatly reduced strength in
his right hand and forearm. The Hearing Officer increased the award to 50%
loss function of right forearm. The WCB affirmed, recognizing that there

are many aspects of the claimant's usual occupation of logging, which he
cannot perform, His inability to perform certain functions with the arm are
considerations which enter the determination of disability. If the loss of
function of the arm in no way affects his usual occupation, he would still be
entitled to award for whatever loss he sustained to the arm.

WCB #606 September 5, 1967

Fred Moffet, Claimant.
Fulop, Gross & Saxon, Claimant's Atty,
State Compensation Dept., Defense Atty.

This case involves a claim for compensation based upon occupational disease

of asbestosis, which was denied by the State Compensation Department. The
claimant, upon hearing, was found to have sustained a compensable occupational
disease, The order of the Hearing Officer was rejected and the matter was
referred to a Medical Board of Review. which has now made its answer to the
questions pursuant to ORS 656.812, The Medical Board decided, that claimant

is permanently and totally disabled with respect to returning to his previous
occupation, because of severe limitation of lung function. This impairment

is due, both to the effects of asbestosis, and to chronic obstructive pulmonary
disease. It is not possible to assign a percentage of impairment, which could
reasonably be attributed to each condition with and degree of accuracy; however,
it would be reasonable to estimate that almost fifty per cent of this man's
pulmonary impairment could be charged to asbestosis and the rest to factors un-
related to his occupation,

WCB #790 September 8, 1967
Marvin Tevepaugh, Claimant.
George W, Rode, Hearing Officer.
Reese Wingard, Claimant's Atty,
Evohl Malagon, Defense Atty.
Claimant is a 57 year-old sawyer, who suffered a back injury in a fall. The

sole issue is the extent of the permanent disability. There is no doubt, that
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“the back injury is severe. Claimant has undergone three laminectomies and has
had three myelograms since this accident. He had also had a laminectomy
following an injury of 1961. Claimant worked some after the accident, but

the job terminated on April 1, 1966, when the mill went out of business,
Claimant did not” apply for unemployment compensation and claims an inability

to work at this time, Medical evidence tended to indicate that claimant was
likely to have a rather poorly functioning back. The Hearing Officer found

the evidence insufficient to sustain a content of permanent total disability,
but did increase award to equivalent to 100% loss of function of an arm, The
WCB modified to permanent and total disability, The WCB found that the Hearing
Officer had erred in discounting the functional element, The WCB considered
Dr. Hickman's report that, "Although he has a long, stable work record, he
actually has relatively few positive personality resources; he is suffering from
considerable undifferentiated psychological distress, much of which seems to be
related to his injury and to his subsequent failure to respond to treatment,..
He is not likely to return to full-time, productive work." The WCB concludes
that "A functional element produced by a serious injury and numerous associated
surgical insults, can be a compensable factor. Accordingly, an order of perma-
nent and total disability was entered.

WCB #67-48 September 8, 1967

Wilfred E. James, Claimant.

John F, Baker, Hearing Officer.
Thomas A, Huffman, Claimant's Atty.
Robert E. Joseph, Jr., Defense Atty.

This case involves the extent of disability resulting from a punch press

being accidently activated against the back of claimant's right hand. Claim-
ant was awarded the equivalent of loss of 407% of the right index finger, 25%
of the right middle finger, and 10% of the right ring finger. The Hearing
Officer increased the 40% disability to 65%; affirmed the award for the right
middle and right ring finger and found a 10% disability in the right little
finger, for which no award had previously been made. The WCB affirmed the
disability to the right middle and right ring finger at 25% and 10% respec-
tively and added an award of the loss of the thumb of 35%. The claimant had
contended that .the award should be based on the "hand". The WCB rejects this,
holding that the metacarpal portion of the fingers encased within the palm

of the hand are still fingers, as distinguished from the forearm. The basis
for the disability of the thumb is as follows: The injury reduced the span
between the thumb and index finger from 19 to 13 centimeters, though he can't
clear the thumb in preparation for grasping, and though the index finger over-
laps the long finger., The Board concludes there is a 35% l0ss of the thumb from
these factors, 20% of which is intrinsic in the thumb, and 15% is due to the
lack of opposition due to the overriding of the index finger over the long
finger. The WCB disallowed the 10% disability for the little finger.
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WCB #296 September 8, 1967

Glen E, Huitt, Sr., Claimant.
George W. Rode, Hearing Officer.,
Hale Thompson, Claimant!s Atty.
John McCulloch, Defense Atty.

Claimant appeals an award of 25% disability for back injury, A summary of

the medical reports indicate that claimant's subjective complaints are not
supported by objective medical findings, and there is abundant evidence of
psychological problems or functional overlay, contributing to claimant's
condition, Hearing Officer affirmed prior award, and WCB affirmed. The
claimant had a long history of back injury, and it appeared here that the
claimant's difficulties in a large measure were psychological, and where these
are not caused by industrial injury, there appears to be little or no basis
either for award or reward, when the industrial injury is incidental to the
real problem,

WCB #67-219 September 8, 1967

Carl B, Ellingson, Claimant,
George W. Rode, Hearing Officer.
Hale Thompson, Claimant's Atty.
Earl Preston, Defense Atty,

Claimant was injured on July 17, 1964, He suffered a prior low-back injury

on January 3, 1957, and February 15, 1963, bothd which resulted in permanent
disability totalling 75%. The State Compensation Department awarded an ad-
ditional 30% for the current claim and claimant appeals. Claimant's complaints
are of continuous pain in the lower part of the back and the leg, and stated
that on occasion his left leg gives out. It appears that the claimant has a
firm belief in his own unemployability, Here the complaints are largely
subjective, and the Hearing Officer was inclined to have reservations about the
claimant's credibility, hence the prior award was sustained. WCB affirmed,
noting that it appeared from the record that claimant has work skills which
could be effectively used. Mere unemployment or mere recitals that "I can't,"
or "I don't think I can," don't suffice to establish extent of disability.

WCB #67-39 September 12, 1967

Charles Raymond Dobson, Claimant.
H. L. Seifert, Hearing Officer.
Gary M, Bullock, Claimant's Atty.
Clayton Hess, Defense Atty,

This case involves a 24 year-old laborer with a back injury. The medical
evidence was confusing and conflicting. The best summary of same would be
that the doctors didn't seem to know what was wrong with the claimant. The
Hearing Officer ruled that, since the burden of proof rests on the claimant
to establish every essential element, and that the presence of a medical-
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causal relationships between the job-connected accident and the disability.
resulting therefrom is such an element, that the claim should be dismissed.

For medical testimony to have probative value, it must not rest on speculation
or the possibility that an injury was related to an accident. The testimony
must show with reasonable certainty, that the accident and the injury are
related, Washburn v, Simmons, 213 Or 418; Crawford v. Seufex, 236 Or 369,

The WCB remanded the case with instructions to Hearing Officer to have claimant
examined by other orthopedic specialists to determine the extent and cause

of the claimant's cisability, if any.

WCB #67-375  September 12, 1967

Claude E. Weakley, Claimant,
George W. Rode, Hearing Officer.
John E, Ferris, Claimant's Atty.,
John R. McCulloch, Jr., Defense Atty.

On September 7, 1966, claimant who was working as a rod-chainman in a survey
party, jumped down on a rock and landed rather heavily. He sustained a sprained
ankle in this fall. On December 7, 1966, claimant complained of a pain in the
right buttock, extending down the right thigh. This condition was diagnosed as
a herniated lumbosacral disc with meuropathy on the right. A laminectomy was
performed soon thereafter, Dr. Lynch's medical report states, that "It would
be reasonably possible for this injury to have initiated the herniated disc, Of
course, I am unable to correlate this particualr injury to the herniated disc
with full certainty." On this basis the Hearing Officer found that the medical
reports did not establish the requisite medical probability. The WCB reversed.
The Supreme Court in Plowman v, SIAC, 144 Or 138, refused to rule against a
workman merely because he did not immediately or correctly diagnose his back
disability. In Uris v. SCD, 84 Adv 851, a late developing back disability was
not to be disallowed merely because of the passage of time from accident to
disability or possible other causes for the disability, Also the claimant
noted some immediate pain, and suffered a progression of tiredness in his back
for the intervening months. "

WCB #67-177 September 13, 1967

Maurice E, Kelley, Claimant.

J. David Kryger, Hearing Officer.
E. B, Sahlstrom, Claimant's Atty,
Earl Preston, Defense Atty,

Claimant was a janitor who broke his left wrist, when he fell over a bicycle

rack. The claim was accepted, and claimant was awarded a 15% loss function of .
the forearm, While falling, claimant sustained a bruise approximately five inches
above his rignht knee. Approximately thirteen months subsequent to the injury

a "Baker's cyst" was discovered and removed, for which climant now seeks compen-
sation, Claimant was awarded an additional 10% loss function of left forearm to

a total of 25%, but dénied compensation for the "Baker's cyst." The Hearing
Officer ruled, that the claimant had failed to sustain his burden of showing a
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medical-causal relationship between the accident and alledged injury. This
is exclusively a medical question for expert opinion (Orr v, STAC, 217 Or
249). Here the medical evidence does not in any way relate a causal rela-
tionship between the existence of the cyst and the prior injury,

WCB #67-42 September 28, 1967
Evelyn L. Shadduck, Claimant.

This is a WCB order filing report of Medical Board of Review. This involves
a claim for occupational disease, consisting of symptoms of coughing and
expectorating blood, allegedly due to exposure to paint fumes and further
identified by the Hearing Officer as pneumonitis, From the order of the
Hearing Officer allowing the claim the State Compensation Department filed a
rejection of the decision and the matter was referred to a Medical Board of
Review, The Medical Board by majority found that there was no occupational
disease or infection, and all concurred that there was no disability at
present.

WCB #67-931 September 28, 1967

Joseph Lee Peck, Claimant.
H., L. Seifert, Hearing Officer.

A Workmen's Compensation Board Determination was made April 25, 1966, in which
claimant was awarded temporary total disability. Claimant now objects and
filed a request for hearing with the Workmen's Compensation Board on August 2,
1967. Request for hearing was denied by reason of failure to comply with

ORS 656.319(2) (b) requirement that request be filed within one year, The WCB
affirmed, but advised the claimant that he could have the claim opened within
five years of the Determination date by filing a claim for aggravation, Such
a right requires claimant to obtain a written report from a doctor that there
are reasonable grounds to support a claim that there has been an aggravation
of the disability resulting from the injury.,

WCB #67-549 September 29, 1967

Benjamin Castricone, Claimant,
George W, Rode, Hearing Officer.
Richard Noble, Claimant's Atty,
Evohl Malagon, Defense Atty.

Claimant bumped his shoulder on a table, He suffered a lump at the end of

the left clavicle and some loss of strength. Claimant was allowed permanent
partial disability equal to 15% loss function of left arm, and in addition,

an unscheduled disability equal to 10% loss function of an arm. Review was
requested before the WCB. However, WCB permitted withdrawal of request. The
Board regrets the record reflects that claimant cites financial distress as the
reason for the withdrawal, The Board, however, assumes that the Hearing Officer
and those charged with administering ORS 656.268, properly performed their
functions.
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WCB #748 September 29, 1967

Guy E, Shannon, Claimant.

George W, Rode, Hearing Officer,
Maurice V., Engelgau, Claimant's Atty.
Hugh Cole, Defense Atty,

The Hearing Officer allowed reasonable transportation expenses incidental to
medical treatment. He found a custom and usage for such payment, and further
found that the workman's right to a free choice of a doctor would indicate
such a right to reimbursement, (The actual amount calculated on the basis

of 8¢ per mile for seven trips between North Bend and Eugene, was stipulated
by counsel.) Georgia-Pacific requested review before the WCB, and then with-
drew same. WCB permitted withdrawal, but assessed $50 reasonablie attorney
fees against Georgia-Pacific in payment for work the counsel for claimant

had done in connection with the review,

WCB #67-142 October 4, 1967

Clayton D, Fairchild, Claimant.
George W. Rode, Hearing Officer.
Lynn Moore, Claimant's Atty,
Earl Preston, Defense Atty,

Claimant slipped and fell from a cement truck, hitting his back on the truck
and suffering what was finally diagnosed as a back sprain. Claimant wants
permanent disability, claiming his back hurts. Claimant's employment since
this accident has been extremely spotty., He claims to have left one job
because of his inability to lift heavy sacks of cement. Since this time
claimant has held several other jobs, and claimant admitted that none of these
jobs were terminated because of any physical condition of claimant (unless
drunkeness is a physical condition), The Hearing Officer found the evidence
in this case is most consistent with the finding that the claimant has a poor
work record, a low motivation for working, severe personal problem, and as is
indicated by his drinking problem, and that the problems that he has do not
stem from the foregoing injury. (He was separated from his wife at the time,)
WCB affirmed finding of permanent disability,

WCB #67-405 October 5, 1967

Billy Joe Sisson, Claimant,

George W, Rode, Hearing Officer.
C.S. Emmons, Claimant's Atty.
Robert E., Joseph, Jr., Defense Atty,

Claimant sustained an admittedly compensable injury on August 15, 1966, when
he fell a distance of somewhere between 5 and 15 feet, injuring his right
sacrum and buttock. On October 7, 1966, claimant was operated on for the
removal of a kidney stone from the claimant's left kidney. The issue is none
other than whether the expert medical evidence established that the accident
was a material contributing cause of the kidney stone condition. The medical
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evidence is in conflict, but the most favorable evidence indicated that the
kidney stone "could have been shaken loose by the fall.” The Hearing Officer
found that this was too speculative, and hence claim denied., The WCB affirmed,
noting that the medical testimony must be relied upon to establish the causal
relationship. Uris v. State Compensation Department, 84 Adv 851, 427 P2d 753,

WCB #779 October 5, 1967

Sally Jane Thompson, Claimant.

H., L. Pattie, Hearing Officer.
Stephen 3, Walker, Claimant's Atty,
Daryll E. Klein, Defense Atty.’

This is a claim of aggravation of a non-job connected back injury. Claimant,

a 22 year-old woman, was a bank teller. She worked part-time during the latter
part of her convalescence, and then went to work full-time after she was re-
leased for same by her doctor. Claimant related no specific event or happening
or any fixed or determinable time, when she suffered an injury to her already
weakened back, Claimant testifies to a greatly increased work load, but
employer's records indicate the claimant's heaviest week of 42 hours is but 4%
hours above normal, or less than one hour per day average, The Hearing Of-
ficer found that the claimant has sustained an increase in back symptoms and
especially increased pain, following her return to full-time employment, but
also found claimant's increased back pain is not an accident arising out of and
in the course of her employment, even applying the *accidental result theory"
now incorporated in Oregon's Compensation Law., There was no admissible medical
testimony of causation. The Hearing Officer recognizes that in cases where the
evidence shows a sequence of events, and a sudden transition of claimant from
health to weakness, the progressive and increasing disability beginning at the
time of the accident, an award may be sustained notwithstanding the uncertainty
of medical testimony, Crowley, 153 Atl., 184(1931). But here non-medical
testimony was found to be somewhat less than credible. A majority of the WCB
affirmed the Hearing Officer's denial of the claim, but Mr, Callahan, dissent-
ing, points out that the treating physician recommended fewer hours of work
than were performed. He further notes that in the latter weeks worked, the
claimant did not always have coffee breaks and sometimes had short lunch periods,
and eventually her condition became worse, and she was forced to discontinue
employment. This, Mr. Callahan suggests, requires a finding that the condi-
tion was aggravated by the work.

WCB #533 October 9, 1967

William A, Hayden, Claimant.
H. L. Seifert, Hearing Officer.

The following are supplemental findings after a remand from the WCB with
instructions to hear further medical testimony as to possible permanent in-
jury and personality change. The claimant had sustained on January 8, 1966,
skull and back injuries from a fall, and the former findings were to the
effect, that there was no permanent disability. Dr. Smith's examination
concluded that claimant had sustained a cerebral concussion contusion and in
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addition injury to the dorsal spine including possible mild compression of
T-9, 10, 11 and a fracture of the spinus process of T-9, For these injuries
claimant appeared to have made an excellent recovery. Dr. Hickman's psycho-
logical evaluation revealed that claimant has bright normal to superior
intellectual resources in both the verbal and nonverbal areas. He found no
evidence suggestive of organic brain damage, but found that the claimant was
experiencing moderately severe depresssive reaction in schizoid personality.
Dr, Hickman suspected that the claimant is being pressured by his father to
persist in his complaints for compensation purposes, The Hearing Officer
found this evidence insufficient to establish permanent partial disability,
The WCB affirmed, summarizing Dr, Smith's report as an "excellent recovery
from his injuries," and Dr, Hickman's report as indicating that any symptoms of
psychopathology present were in existence prior to the accident,

WCB #67-63 October 11, 1967

Joe N. Oreskovich, Claimant.

H. L. Pattie, Hearing Officer,
Bernard Jolles, Claimant's Atty,
Gerald C. Knapp, Defense Atty.

Claimant is a 67 year-old longshoreman. He has suffered from several prior
injuries over the years, and the diagnosis of the incident in question was a
strain of the lumbar muscles and ligaments. This i$ an appeal from an award
for permanent partial disability equal to 10% loss of an arm by separation for
an unscheduled disability. The claimant had been gainfully employed until the
accident in question, although he had been confined to the "old man board.,"
Now he can still walk, but suffers a considerable loss of motion in his lower
back as well as pain. The evidence is clear that he will never be able to go
back to longshoring, The evidence also indicates that he is suffering from
severe degenerative arthritis and scoliosis, The Hearing Officer holds that
there is no clear evidence establishing the extent of this disability as
related to the injury of June 23, 1966, Such disability as claimant suffers,
must be prorated between emphysema, age, prior disabilities, obesity and
degenerative arthritis. It is further held, that the burden of showing how
much of claimant's admittedly large degree of disability, was attributable

to the compensible accident was not met. The WCB, Mr., Callahan dissenting,
affirmed, noting that there was no medical evidence indicating that the clai-=
mant cannot do a more sedentary type of work, and thus the sum of his disabili-=
ties does not meet the definition of permanent and total disability. Mr,
Callahan would find permanent and total disability, since the claimant had
worked regularly until the accident and is now unable to do so.

WCB #67-180 October 11, 1967

Bror E. Nelson, Claimant, .
Page Pferdner, Hearing Officer,
Dan O'Leary, Claimant's Atty,

Roger R, Warren, Defense Atty.

Claimant was a rigger and truck driver for Gunderson Bros., He was 51 years old,
He suffered a smashed hand., Claimant has suffered a loss of grip and probably
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will not be able to work again as a rigger or truck driver, but can work as a
fry cook. The original determination was made on the basis of the loss of
function of the respective fingers., The Hearing Officer found, the Board
concurs, that the loss of grip function is compensible and should be recog-
nized as a factor in addition to the indicated disability of the separate
fingers, The Hearing Officer awarded a permanent partial disability of 20%
loss of use of his left forearm as compensation for the loss of grip, in addi-
tion to the awards for the respective finger disabilities, On review before
the Board, an issue was formed on whether an award for loss of grip may be
expressed in terms of the forearm, The standard practice for the analogous
situation, loss of opposition by a finger to a thumb, is of course, awarded in
terms of the thumb., The Board finds that this practice is easily and effectively
adapted to the needs of expressing amaward for grip loss (or loss of "palmar
opposition"). The WCB, therefore, modified the Hearing Officer's order, delet-
ing the award of 20% loss of use of the left forearm and substituting a 40%
loss of use of the left thumb due to loss of grip. The Claimant's counsel

was awarded $200 as reasonable attorney fees,

WCB #67-221 October 11, 1967

Calvin R. Miller, Claimant,

H, L., Pattie, Hearing Officer.

Donald S. Richardson, Claimant's Atty,
James A. Blevins, Defense Atty.

Claimant suffered a mashed left thumb. He was treated by Dr. G. J. McGowan
at Holladay Park Hospital. His thumb was X-rayed and bandaged, and he was
released immediately and returned to work. The Claimant here seeks a perma-
nent partial disability. Claimant offers no medical evidence, only his own,
The treating physician's report on Form 827 indicates that the doctor antici-
pated the only time loss to be the "rest of the day." The Hearing Officer
found that the claimant had failed to sustain his burden of proof as to dis-
ability, The WCB affirmed, summarizing the Claimant's testimony as indicat-
ing that there was a numbness in his left thumb, and that he had soreness and
loss of strength in the injured hand. Held: This testimony does not demon=
strate disability of a permanent nature.

WCB #67-197 October 12, 1967

Forrest C., Lamm, Claimant,

J. David Kryger, Hearing Officer,
A, C. Roll, Claimant's Atty,

Earl Preston, Defense Atty,

Claimant is a 56 year-old logger who suffered a crushed right leg in a logging
accident, Dr. Brooke diagnozed it as a severely comminuted fracture of the
mid-portion of the tibia and fibula of the right leg. In this case the claim-
ant was referred teo the Rehabilitation Center at the time that he was released
by the treating physician for some form of work. The claimant alleges that

he is entitled to temporary total disability payments during the period of
rehabilitation, The Hearing Officer denies this claim and discusses both the
pre-1966 law and the present law. The old law (ORS656.246) prohibited the
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final settlement of a claim until restoration was complete, The Hearing
Officer relies on Dimitroff v, SIAC, 209 Or 316: and Vader v, STAC, 163 Or

492 for the interpretation that restoration means only medical restoration,
The new law (ORS 656.268) prohibits closing the claim until the workman's
condition becomes medically stationary. Here the Hearing Officer rules that
it is "obvious that the term 'Medically stationary' is limited to medical
treatment alone, and does not include rehabilitative processes.” Hence,

under either law temporary total disability payment need not be continued
during the process of rehabilitation, because the claim may be closed when

the claimant's condition is found to be medically stationary. The Hearing
Officer sustained a previous determination of permanent partial disability

of 50% loss function of his right leg. The WCB remanded, directing the
Hearing Officer to hear further testimony so as to find out the significance of
claimant's testimony, if any, that there was a'slippage" in his knee, which he
hadn't reported to the doctor.,

WCB #67-33 October 12, 1967

Jeanne E. Belanger, Claimant,
Harold M, Gross, Hearing Officer,
Don Wilson, Claimant's Atty.
James Blevins, Defense Atty,

Claimant suffered a lower back injury, while working in a nursing homeg when
an elderly patient resisted an attempt to put her to bed, The claimant
immediately felt a stabbing pain in the low back, Claimant, although a mother
of seven, had no history of back problems. Since she was released for employ-
ment, she has been working on a turkey ranch with her husband and having
continuing problems with her back. The Determination had awarded her permanent
partial disability equal to 10% loss of an arm by separation, The Hearing
Officer raised the-same to 20%. The turning issue in this case is whether

the claimant's condition is medically stationary, The treating physician had
suspected a herniated disc, but no myelogram was done, apparently because of
the claimant's pregnancy. Despite the continuing doubt as to the seriousness
of the claimant's problems and a possible need for a laminectomy, the defen-
dant's physician, Dr., Linquist, declared the claimant medically stationary,
It is this declaration the claimant protests. The Hearing Officer refused to
disturb Dr. Linquist's finding that the condition was stationary, absent
definitely contrary medical opinion, although he would have preferred the use
of a myelogram to further investigate the possible need for a laminectomy,

The WCB with agreement of counsel for claimant obtain a further examination

by an orthopedic surgeon. The latter recommended that a myelogram be effected,
and accordingly the case is remanded to the Hearing Officer to obtain a
myelogram,
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WCB #859 October 13, 1967

Albert R, Walverton, Claimant,

Harold M, Gross, Hearing Officer,
Maurice V. Engelgau, Claimant's Atty.,
Evohl Malagon, Defense Atty.

Claimant, a grocery stock shelver, injured his back on February 10, 1966,

when he slipped while holding a box weighing from 25 to 40 pounds., He is now
68 years old. His past medical history includes two laminectomies, one in
1948, and the other in 1965. A basic underlying condition in his back is identi-
fied as advanced degenerative lumbar disc disease. Nonetheless the uncon-
tracted evidence was that the claimant had been able to perform his duties as

a grocery clerk with no difficulty prior to the accident, Claimant testified
that he had undertaken a job as a night shift caretaker at the Elks Club, but
had to give it up because of the pain and discomfort of his back. Claimant
testified, that he thought he could do a few hours a day of light office jani-
torial work, but that he had been unable to find same. The treating physician
says that this is unrealistically optimistic, and the fact is that the claimant
cannot perform regularly useful work. The Hearing Officer finds that this
meets the requirements for permanent total disability under ORS 656,206(1),

The Hearing Officer found the overwhelming evidence, "both medical and lay
indicated that whatever claimant's preexisting medical condition in February,
1966, it did not create disability until the accident of February, 1966, from
which we may assume that this accident was the instigating cause.” The WCB
affirmed the Hearing Officer, finding substantial evidence to support the
findings, conclusion and order of total permanent disability.

WCB #67-338 October 17, 1967

Phillip E. Lowe, Claimant.

Harold M, Gross, Hearing Officer,
Wesley Franklin, Claimant's Atty,
Robert E. Joseph, Jr., Defense Atty.

The Hearing Officer made the following finding of fact:
"That while engaged in horseplay while working for the above-
named employer (a cannery), on February 23, 1967, claimant was
struck by a blow to his chest area, above the area of a surgical
scar from a preexisting ulcer operation. That such blow came
while claimant was engaged in 'horseplay,' but was not the result
of any intentional act by anyone. That claimant has failed to
prove that he suffered any injury as a result of this accidental
contact while working, and that claimant's subjective complaints
are neither supported by objective findings of three examining and
treating physicians, nor do they exclude the possibility that such
complaints arise out of the preexisting ulcer condition, were not
brought on by the blow to claimant's body.,"

The claimant described the incident as a "judo chop right across his incision,”
and that as a result, he tasted blood five minutes later. Dr. Long's sugges-
tion for treatment was "reassurance and encouragement." The Hearing Officer
denied the claim, The WCB rejected a request for review, because it was filed
more than 30 days afterthe order of the Hearing Officer,
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WCB #224 October 18, 1967

Schmidt Brothers Farms; Employer,
Complying Status.

WCB recinded a default order of June 14, 1967, declaring Schmidt Brothers
Farms a noncomplying employer.

After a personal investigation by Chairman Callahan and Commissioner Cady,
the Board found that Schmidt Brothers Farms pellet mill is an activity defined
as farming within Oregon's Workmen's Compensation Law,

WCB #894 October 23, 1967

Robert T. Delamare, Claimant.
H. L. Seifert, Hearing Officer.
John M. Ross, Claimant's Atty.
John McCulloch, Defense Atty,

Claimant fell through a roof and injured his shoulder. Pain in the left
shoulder persisted and corrective surgery (acromionectomy) for a torn rotator
cuff was performed in April, Substantial limitation of motion still exists.
This is a claim arising under former procedure, in which the State Compen-
sation Department established the initial award, The practice under that
procedure was to place primary reliance on a specific statement of percentage
by the treating physician. The treating physician in this instance, a highly
qualified orthopedic surgeon, recommends an award of 50% loss of use of the
left arm. Neither the Hearing Officer nor the Board found any reason to dis-
agree with that percentage.

WCB #863 October 23, 1967

Cathy Bertha Delamare, Claimant.
H. L. Seifert, Hearing Officer.,
John M. Ross, Claimant's Atty.
John McCulloch, Defense Atty,

Claimant was injured, when a roof fell, striking her on the head and back.
She was awarded permanent partial disability equal to 10% loss of an arm for
unscheduled disability. The medical reports ranged from "little evidence of
serious injury" to '"chronic lumbar strain.”™ However, claimant testifies to
pain sitting, working, lifting and cannot sleep. Hearing Officer stated,
"Having seen and heard the claimant, and having considered all the evidence
in the case, I cannot find that the determination awarded claimant is unfair,
unjust or disproportionate,” WCB affirmed.
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WCB #67-469 October 26, 1967

George Kautz, Claimant.

H. L, Pattie, Hearing Officer,.
Garret L, Romaine, Claimant's Atty,
Roger Warren, Defense Atty,

Claimant is a 51 year-old cherry picker operator, who received an injury to
his right foot, involving the fifth metatarsal (big toe) and the end of the
tibia (one of the bones between the knee and the ankle). He is capable of
performing light duty, but since his regular job is light duty, he has been
able to return to his regular job and work steadily. His foot, however,
continues to suffer from swelling and pain. The determination was made at
20% loss of function of the right foot. Dr. Puziss rated the claim at 15% loss
of function at or above the right ankle. The Hearing Officer denied an in-
crease in permanent partial disability, citing Wilson v. SIAC, 189 Or 114:
"It is not the intention of the law to compensate for pain, suffering or
nervousness, in and of themselves, but the disabling effect of such may be
considered in determining the disabling effect of any particular injury."
Claimant's argumsnt on review is that the claimant's ability to follow his
former occupation was taken into consideration in determination of his award,
The WCB denied that this had been done, and stated that "Claimant's evaluation
of disability was made despite his ability to hold his former job."™ The
Hearing Officer was affirmed with the usual recitation, that the findings
were supported by substantial evidence.

Ed, Note: It is curious here, that the Hearing Officer's opinion under the
heading of "Findings," devotes about half of his space to discussion of the
claimant's ability to perform his present job,

WCB #67-175 October 26, 1967

John F. Byers, Claimant.

J. David Kryger, Hearing Officer,
Dan O'Leary, Claimant's Atty,

D. J. Grant, Defense Atty,

Claimant suffered a lower back injury. A successful laminectomy was performed,
and claimant was able to return to his duties as a millwright, He suffers from
no pain, but has some limitation of motion and can't work quite as fast. The
Hearing Officer affirmed the permanent partial disability Determination of 20%
loss of an arm by separation, ruling that "Claimant has the burden of showing
the Board Determination to be unjust and erroneous,"” Citing Dimitroff v. SIAC,
209 Or 316. On WCB review, "The claimant in effect argues that he has no
burden to prove the order subjected to hearing was an error. Regardless of
semantics, it does not appear that the Hearing Officer gave evidentiary value
to the previous determination, There is certainly a burden upon the claimant
to prove the disability is in excess of the amount awarded by the Determination.,
Without a cross-request from the other party for hearing, the extent of dis-
ability could not be reduced by the Hearing Officer, even though the Hearing
Officer concluded the disability was less."
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WCB #67-50 October 26, 1967

Robert B. Cooper, Claimant. .
H. L, Pattie, Hearing Officer.
Gary Gregory, Claimant's Atty.
Clayton Hess, Defense Atty.,

This case presents the problem of timeliness of the request for the Hearing.
Notice of Denial was dated and mailed November 14, 1966, by the State Compen-
sation Department., The request for hearing was prepared by the claimant
personally and is dated January 11, 1967, It was mailed to "State Compensa-
tion Dept, Labor and Industries Bldg.,, Salem, Oregon," and was postmarked
January 11, 1967, and was stamped "Received SCD, January 12, 1967." This was
the 59th day from the date of the mailing of the Notice of Denial. This was
a Thursday. The SCD kept the letter until the 60 days had expired, and then
delivered to the Hearings Division of the Workmen's Compensation Board, where
it was stamped "received" on January 16, 1967, the 63rd day, and a Monday.
The Hearing Officer found that the request for hearing must be direct to or
actually received by the Workmen's Compensation Board. He further found that
the sixty days begins to run from the date of mailing of the notice of denial,
Here the Hearing Officer relies on past WCB rulings, that the "notified of
denial' means "notice. of denial mailed," (Claude E. Riggle, WCB #6633 Ruth
Pastermak, WCB #139,). The WCB affirmed ruling that "Whatever dutyeo..tOocos
protect the citizen from his mistakes is not really at issue, unless it could
be said the record reflected a deliberate effort to take advantage of that
error or mistake," "The legal issue should be treated as though the document
had been improperly forwarded to the Insurance Commissioner, Labor Commissioner
or to the employer or private insurance carrier. The WCB ordered that future
notices to claimants should include the address of the Workmen's Compensation
Board,

WCB #67-432 October 27, 1967

Carlos V. Rios, Claimant,

H. L. Seifert, Hearing Officer,
Francis F. Yunker, Claimant's Atty,
Wayne A, Williamson, Defense Atty,

The claimant was struck by a gyrating bolt and suffered multiple contusions,
X-rays indicated no broken bones, Claimant complains of soreness in the
shoulders, neck, back, legs and arms, as well as tightness across; the kidneys
and an upset stomach and a prickly sensation in both ears, Dr, deVries found
a weakness of grip of the left hand, Dr. Tooms found little physical dis=-
ability, Dr. Hickman gave a psychological evaluation and found claimant ex=-
troverted and aggressive emotionally, and that he displayed evidence of moder=
ately severe chronic neurotic reactions with some suggestion of a personality
trait disturbance, and was evasive and deceitful whenever he felt it served
his purpose to do so, Dr. Kosterlitz found psychophysiological reaction, mani=-
fested by multiple complaints and compensation motivation overt, The Hearing
Officer denied any permanent partial disability, and the WCB affirmed,
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WCB #67-435 October 27, 1967

Everett N, Gray, Claimant,

H, L, Seifert, Hearing Officer.

C. H. Seagraves, Jr., Claimant's Atty.
Earl Preston, Defense Atty,

This is an occupations disease claim pertaining to a condition of the lungs
because of dust exposure while loading lumber. The determination for this lung
condition was an award of permanent partial disability equivalent to 70% loss

of function of an arm for unscheduled disability, Pulmonary function studies
indicated that the claimant's vital capacity was 60% of normal. The diagnosis
indicated chronic obstructive bronchitis and a moderate degree of pulmonary
emphysema. The claimant wants total permanent total disability, It is apparently
impossible to tell what percentage of claimant's vital capacity is impaired by
emphysema and what percentage by bronchitis. Dr. Isert felt that claimant was
impaired approximately 4F to 507 of the whole man, which was found equivalent

to 67% to 837% of an upper extremity. The Hearing Officer affirmed the determin-
ation of 70% loss of function of an arm, The matter next went to the Medical
Board of Review, The latter found that "it was the opinion of the Board that
Mr. Gray's impairment is 50%,and that he should be awarded a 50% total disa-
bility rather than attempt to base the disability on a percentage loss of
extremity." The WCB filed the opinion, raising the question of the Medical
Board's not following the statutory scheme of disabilities.

WCB #67-776 October 27, 1967

Stanley H. Raney, Claimant.
Page Pferdner, Hearing Officer,
Ben T, Gray, Claimant's Atty.

Claimant appeals a Determination of no permanent partial disability. On

July 28, 1966, claimant suffered an acute left lumbosacral strain while working
for Avison Lumber Co., He was released to return to work on August 15, 1966,

On September 10th, he went to work for the post office, and the following April
Ist, claimant again hurt his low back, Medical reports after the latter injury
indicated "congenitally anomalous lumbo-sacral joint with transitional verte=
brae)’ and "developmental anomaly at L-5 or the upper sacral area with a sacralis
zation of the transverse process of the upper sacral segment,™ Claimant had

not consulted any doctor between August 15, 1966, and April 5, 1967, The Hear-
ing Officer found that the post office injury was a new injury and could not be
charged to Avison Lumber Co., and that there was no evidence of impaired earning
capacity as a result of the prior injury. Appeal to the WCB was made and with=
drawn by claimant's counsel., Compensible disability is inability as a result

of work-connected injury, to perform or obtain work suitable to claimant's
qualifications and training. The degree of disability depends upon impairment
of earning capacity, which in turn is presumptively determined by comparing pre=
injury earnings with post-injury earning capacity, An intervening injury does
not discharge the Hearing Officer from the onerous duty of determining the
extent of disability resulting from the original injury, but here it appeared that
there was none,
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WCB #933  October 27, 1967

Lester E. Carr, Claimant.

H, L. Pattie, Hearing Officer,
Thomas F. Levak, Claimant's Atty.
Roger Warran, Defense Atty.

Claimant, a 53 year-old boilermaker, was thrown from a scaffold and suffered
multiple bruises and abrasions and a fracture of the pelvis in the acetabulum
near the head of the left femur, He was released from the hospital after about
four weeks, but required to use crutches, When claimant became ambulatory

(on crutches), a left inguinal hernia was discovered. He had had a right
inguinal hernia of long duration, which predated the accident, but it was neces-
sary to repair both hernias by surgery. The SCD paid medicals on left, and
claimant must pay for the right one., No permanent partial disability allowed
for the hernia, The medical evidence indicated that the fracture was very
serious and irrepairable, and some progression of degenerative changes. Dr.
Clarke recommended a disability award of 607 of any arm for unscheduled disa-
bility, but acknowledges that his rating is in anticipation of future disabil-
ity rather than present disability. The Hearing Officer noted that anticipated
future aggravation is not basis for present award, and claim must be brought
for same when aggravation occurs., Claimant's leg is now sore, although he has
been able to return to work, so here there is no actual loss of earnings, but
permanent partial disability may be awarded for actual physical impairment, too.
Accordingly, an order was entered granting permanent partial disability equiva-
lent to 30% loss by separation of an arm for an unscheduled disability, to the
pelvis, It was also found that claimant suffered edema of the legs and a
permanent partial disability of 10% loss of function of the left leg and 10%
loss of function of the right leg was awarded. Claimant's counsel withdrew
request for review by WCB,

WCB #67-550 October 27, 1967

Howard Alexander, Claimant. !
H. L, Seifert, Hearing Officer.

Tyler Marshall, Claimant's Atty.

Gerald C. Knapp, Defense Atty.

Claimant suffered a left hand and wrist injury on May 4, 1966, On May 11th,
claimant underwent surgery on his left wrist, in which the carpal tunnel was
explored and the median nerve dissected. Postoperatively claimant developed
urinary retention, which required catherization, Following the urinary compli-
cation, claimant has suffered from sexual impotence. Claimant has trouble

using his hand to hold tools, which he must do as a heavy-duty mechanic. He
suffers a loss of strength in his ring and little fingers, which affects his
ability to grip and use his hand tools. The Hearing Officer awarded a perma-
nent partial disability of 25% loss function of the third finger and a 25% loss
function of the fourth finger. On review the claimant urged a disability of the
forearm. WCB ruled that Mit is true that finger disabilities affect the ability
to use the hand proper, the forearm and entire arm, but ratings of disability
must be limited to the area disabled, There is substantial evidence, that the
disability is limited to the fingers." As to the sexual impotency, the Board
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ruled: "Sexual complications, though not the subject of any Oregon Supreme
Court decisions, are normally not compensated, unless it appears there has been
an interference with the workman's ability to work, This was not established
by the evidence in this case.™

WCB #67-422 November 3, 1967

In the Matter of the Question as to
Whether the Estate of Mary Catherine Smith
and Nan Carnahan, Grants Pass, Oregon,

is Subject to the Workmen's Compensation
Act of 1965,

with the State Compensation Department
being a necessary party.

John Bowman, Claimant,

H., L. Seifert, Hearing Officer.

C. H. Seagraves, Claimant's Atty.

Louis F. Schultz, Jr., Employer's Atty,

Claimant was injured when he fell from a ladder while remodeling a warehouse,
so that it could be rented out by the Estate of Smith, Defendant did not con-
tribute to the industrial accident fund or qualify as a direct responsibility
employer under ORS 656,016, and had not filed a rejection in this case, Claim-
ant was to be paid $2.50 per hour, and it was anticipated that there would be
ten days to two weeks work, Claimant was to work with Gladwin Smith, who was
to be in charge of the job, Gladwin Smith was paid no set rate, he merely
submitted a bill, After the claimant was injured, a general contractor was
employed to finish the job, It took him and two carpenters sixteen hours to
finish the work at the cost of $65.00. Tests of employee or contractor rela-
tionship:

(1). Amount of control reserved: While the evidence indicates that claimant
and Gladwin Smith worked together as a team, it appears that claimant took
orders in his job from Gladwin Smith, Gladwin Smith had dlready started the job,
and claimant was called in to help him, Gladwin Smith was in charge of seeing
that the job was completed, which would indicate that claimant was in the posi-
tion of an employee.

(2). On the right to terminate: There were no elaborate contractural arrange-
ments in this case. Claimant was injured on the first day of his employment,
and the only arrangement was that he was to be paid an hourly rate. The dura-
tion of the job was approximate; however, it appears that claimant was only to
be paid for the hours he worked on the job, which would indicate that he was

an employee.

(3). On furnishing equipment: Claimant here furnished his own carpenter

tools; however, this was in accordance with the practice of the trade. The
other material was furnished by the defendant. He had no right to employ assis=
tance, and he received wages based merely upon the time employed, rather than
on the amount of work he accomplished; all of which would point to an employer=
employee relationship.

-29-



(4), Claimant had worked previously for defendant on an hourly basis. On this
basis, the Hearing Officer found an employer-employee relationship existed
between John M. Bowman and the Estate of Smith,
The Hearing Officer went on to find that claimant was not a casual worker
within the provisions of ORS 656,027 (3), The WCB reversed holding that the
claim was not compensible within the terms of Oregon Workmen's Compensation Law,
The WCB stated as follows:

"The true legal issue for an accident which occurred in 1966

does not reach the casual exemption applied commencing January 1,

1966, By virtue of 0. L, 1965 Ch 285, Sec 9a, no employer with

less than four workmen employed in one day is subject unless the

employer was engaged in one of the occupations defined as hazardous

by ORS 656,084, There appears to have been fewer than four employees

in this instance."
The Board went on to find that claimant was not engaged in one of the ORS
656.084 hazardous occupations., Then, this final comment was added, ™The Board
concludes, that if the injury had occurred on or after January 1, 1967, the
order of the Hearing Officer could have been affirmed, However,...the Board
concludes, that Mr, John Bowman was not a subject workman, nor was the employer
a subject employer on the date of Mr, Bowman's injuries."

WCB #67-577  November 3, 1967

Thomas Ayers, Claimant,

H., L, Pattie, Hearing Officer.
James B, Griswold, Claimant's Atty,
James A. Blevins, Defense Atty.

Claimant is an ironworker and welder. This is an appeal from a Determination
granting claimant "an award for permanent disability equal to 20% loss func=
tion of left foot and 15% loss of an arm by separation for unscheduled disa-
bility." Claimant was dealt a glancing blow from a falling steel column,
Claimant sustained a 2% inch laceration on his scalp and three fractures in

the left leg between the knee and the ankle. An operation was performed on

the leg and two parallel screws were placed in the lower end of the tibia to
fix one of the fractures in place. The other fractures were reduced by cast

or splint, All the claimants upper teeth were extracted surgically, and
claimant was fitted with a full upper plate, Claimant suffered a loss of taste
also. Further, there was evidence of a mild compression fracture of the first
vertebrae. Claimant now suffers from one-third to one-half limitation of motion
in his ankle and is unable to put his weight on the ball of his foot, which makes
it impossible for him to climb a ladder, hence drastically limiting his ability
as an ironworker, The claimant's back hurts most of the time, which restricts
him to lighter work, The Hearing Officer awarded an unscheduled disability
equivalent to 20% loss of an arm by separation for injury to his back and mouth
(loss of taste), and a 50% loss function of the left foot, The State Compens
sation Department requested a review to protest the inclusion of the loss of
taste among the compensible factors of unscheduled injuries. The WCB took
notice of the policy of the old STIAC, that loss of taste or smell was not an
injury known to surgery as permanent partial disability, However, the Board
reviewed the evidence as to the includable, nonscheduled elements and found
such disabilities are equivalent to the loss by separation of 20% of an arm.
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WCB #67-538 November 7, 1967

Henry H. Brown, Claimant.

H, L, Seifert, Hearing Officer,
Robert. J. McCrea, Claimant's Atty.
John E. Jaqua, Defense Atty,

Claimant, a 51 year-old mechanic, injured his elbow when a wrench slipped.
Since this time, claimant has suffered from a marked weakness of the hand and

a tendency to drop objects because of this awkwardness, An operation under the
name of a medical epicondylar stripping was performed on the claimant, The
medical evidence indicated a minimal permanent partial disability. The Deter-
mination was made for permanent partial disability equal to 10% loss function
of the left arm, After recovery from the operation, claimant did not return

to the mechanic's work, but instead went to work in the less demanding job of

a service station employee., Claimant still complains of weakness, numbness

and pain, when he attempts to lift, There is no limitation of motion, The
Hearing Officer affirmed the determination and request for review was withdrawn
by claimant's counsel with reservation to file claim for aggravation later.

WCB noted that there was a statutory right to file claim for aggravation, and
it was not waived by a dismissal of a review of present award.

WCB #664 November 8, 1967

Anthony Fullmer, Jr., Claimant,

Harold M. Gross, Hearing Officer.
Donald Atchinson, Claimant's Atty.
0. E. McAdams, Jr.,, Defense Atty.

Ed. Note: The Hearing Officer's opinion in this case, although reversed by
a majority vote of the WCB, Mr. Callahan dissenting, preeents an excellent

summary of the law in this area. It is approximately 5,000 words long and

carefully documented,

This is an AOE/COE case in which the claimant is an 18 year-old high school
senior, who was working for Sherwood Logging Co. The logging camp was some

70 to 78 miles one way from the claimant's home over something less than the
best roads. There was "supposed to be" a ride for the claimant, but there
wasn't, so the claimant was driving his own car. This was not the first
weekend that the claimant had brought his own car, but, apparently, the second.
The accident occurred about 2:45 A,M., when claimant went to sleep behind the
wheel and drove off Highway 101, near Port Orford, and sustained a fractured
skull, A more detailed description of the arrangements for transportation, as
extracted from the opinion of the WCB is as follows: Claimant had worked for
the same employer under conditions where he received his transportation to and
from the job site in a crummy. With respect to the job site involved at the time
of injury, there was no such provision for transportation. From a camp site in
the woods to the job site, the employer provided transportation, The issue is
whether the contract of employment encompassed the travel in question on week-
ends to and from home to the camp site. The most that can be said for the
conversation between the employer and claimant is that the claimant was to con=
tact a fellow employee, or that other truck drivers might be contacted., It is
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admitted, that the fellow employee with whom he might otherwise have ridden,

at the most received some gas for driving from home to the camp site, and

this was consideration for hauling some of the employer's equipment and not as
compensatiam for the personal travel, He received neither time nor mileage for
his pickup. It is, perhaps, worth noting, that the Hearing Officer found that
among other things, that the employer had more or less offered transportation

as an inducement for the employee to take the job, Accordingly the Hearing Of-
ficer found that the claim should have been accepted, The majority of the Board,
Mr, Callahan dissenting, reverses, stating that, "The trip from home to camp
site in a personal car without pay for the time and no discussion between em-
ployer-workman about the workman's use of the car, does not reflect an extension
of the course of employment to cover such activity."

WCB #67-462 November 9, 1967

Velma Cochran, Claimant.

H. L. Seifert, Hearing Officer.
Gary G. Jones, Claimant's Atty.
Carlotta Sorensen, Defense Atty,

Claimant, a hospital aide, fell and fractured her right wrist, while roller
skating with patients, Her complaint, nine months later, was inability to
regain strength and hold objects in her right hand. Dr. King examined at this
time, January 3, 1967, and found that movement was good, and there was no
apparent weakness. Dr, Puziss examined on January 19, and found that the
claimant lacked about 15 degrees of complete normal ulnar deviation, but

found normal dorsiflexion, palmar flexion and radial deviation, and there was
almost no difference between the grips, Dr., Kion on reexamination found a
demineralization of the bones of the wrist, but said that this was getting
better, The Determination was set equal to 10% loss of function of right
forearm. Claimant's testimony collaborated by two witnesses was that she had
loss of grip in her hand and is continually dropping things. She has a lump
on her right wrist. Dr. Puziss indicated, that the best thing that could hap-
pen to claimant, is for her to get back to work, use the hand and forget about
her injury. The Hearing Officer affirmed the Determination, and the WCB af-
firmed the Hearing Officer.

WCB #67-58 November 9, 1967

George Baker, Claimant.

H., L. Pattie, Hearing Officer.

Darrell L. Cornelius, Claimant's Atty,
Peter R. Blyth, Defense Atty.

Appeal from determination of no permanent partial disability. Claimant, a
grocery clerk, was loading groceries into a station wagon, when same was hit
from the front by another car, knocking it into the claimant. The tailgate
struck claimant's knees and the upper portion of the car struck his head,
throwing him backwards to the pavément, again str1k1ng his head and injuring

his shoulders and back, Claimant testified to headaches, ache in his shoulders,
low back, left leg, hip and knee, None of this subjective testimony can be
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contradicted by the insurance carrier. The medical examination by Dr. Cohen
revealed slightly diminished reflexes in the knees and tenderness in the spine
at the cervical, dorsal and lumbar areas, The Hearing Officer found no com-
pensible permanent partial disability by reason of the headaches and miscel-
laneous aches and pains to which he testifies, However, the Hearing Officer
did find that claimant has sustained a permanent partial disability for pain
in his cervical, dorsal and lumbar spine, equivalent to 10% loss of an arm by
separation, and that claimant has sustained a disability to his left knee,
equivalent to 10% loss function of the left leg, primarily because he walks
with a limp, and this impedes his walking ability as a grocery carry-out boy.
In the letter it is to be noted that there was no disability rating by either
examining doctor, but such is not necessary. On review by the WCB, the comment
was made, that "The Board has not, and cannot, rule out subjective complaints
as a basis of award. Even if all the complaints were subjective, a duty re-
mains to determine whether the complaints are founded in fact and, if so, the
extent of disability resulting therefrom.”" WCB affirmed and allowed $200.00
attorney fees to claimant's attorney,

WCB #67-468 November 9, 1967

James F. Coleman, Claimant. ‘
George W. Rode, Hearing Officer.
Herbert Galton, Claimant's Atty.
Clayton Hess, Defense Atty.

Claimant suffered a back strain lifting a patient, while working for a hospital,
A determination awarded no permanent disability. Claimant strongly protested
that the doctors at the hospital had not treated or evaluated him dispassion-
ately, Accordingly another doctor was appointed for an examination and on the
basis of his report, a permanent partial disability award equal to 10% loss of
function of an arm was entered by the Hearing Officer. The review before the
WCB pertains to the schedule of benefits, It was noted, that under prior law
the "schedule" for unscheduled injuries was customarily stated in terms of
equivalent to loss of use of an arm, However, the 1965 Act deleted the modi-
fying words "of use" after loss, and at the same time increased the maximum
allowable to the award, which would be made if an arm were lost by separation,
The Board, having reviewed the record, concludes that the only conclusion which
can be drawn from the evidence is that claimant does have permanent disability
in his back, equal to the loss by separation of 10% of an arm., This modifies
the order of the Hearing Officer by substituting the words "by separation” for
"of function."

WCB #315 November 13, 1967

Dale Eugene Bridge, Claimant.
Page Pferdner, Hearing Officer,
Mitchell Crew, Claimant's Atty.,
Clayton Hess, Defense Atty,

Claimant had a prior injury for which he had been awarded a total of 407 loss

function of an arm for an unscheduled lower back injury. Claimant suffered
another lower back injury on December 21, 1965, Medical evidence indicated,
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that claimant had a mild nerve root compression to which he seemingly over-
reacted., The Hearing Officer found permanent partial disability resulting

from injuries to his back did not exceed 40% loss function of an arm for un-
scheduled disability. On review the question of the effect of the Hearing
Officer's violation of ORS 656,289(1), which requires that orders be issued
within 30 days, was raised, The WCB concluded that the purpose of the statute
was to expedite the hearing process and same would be defeated, if the order
were declared void and a new hearing required. A second contention complains
of the refusal of the Hearing Officer to admit into evidence the portion of
medical report, which undertook to assume the ultimate decision of the extent
of permanent disability., Rule 5.05 (B) (10) favors the production of medical
reports expressed in terms of impairment of physical function, rather than for
the doctor to assume the responsibility of rating the ultimate disability, This
is not mandatory, and when a report is tendered, it should not be refused into
evidence, The WCB finds this error, but not reversible error. The Board also
holds that the Hearing Officer missed the issue in fixing the compensation.
"The issue is not whether the claimant now has a total of 40% or any other fixed
percentage of disability in his back as compared to an.arm,..Taking the claim-
ant as he was on ..., the date of theinjury in question, what, if any additional
permanent diability has claimant suffered as a result of that injury.,.?"

The WCB then found that the injury in question caused the claimant to suffer an
increase in the permanent disability in his back, and that this additional
permanent disability is equal to the loss of use or function of 20% of an arm.

WCB #67-207 November 21, 1967

James F., Loper, Claimant.

George W. Rode, Hearing Officer.
A, C, Roll, Claimant's Atty.
Paul Geddes, Defense Atty,

Claimant suffered noncompensible injuries to his neck and shoulder on Novem=
ber 12, 1966, when he fell in an attempt to elude a low-flying airplane. The
injury in question was sustained on December 23, 1966, when claimant stepped

off a platform and landed on his head. The insurance carrier first accepted

the claim and paid temporary total disability until March 22, 1966, when the
claimant was advised by letter, that no further payments would be made, and on
the same day a form "802" was submitted to the WCB with copy to claimant

bearing the remarks, "Claim denied after further investigation.” The Hearing
Officer heard the matter on the merits and found that the claimant's condition
was materially contributed to by the accident of December 23, 1966, The WCB
ruled, that "if the two documents were intended to be a claim 'denial' they fall
short of the requirements of ORS 656,262 (6), in that no reason for the denial

is set forth, The accidental injury remains admitted by the employer, and the
only issues are thus extent of disability and penalties against the employer for
delay and resistance to payment of compensation.” The WCB found "that the fail-
ure of the employer to either properly deny the claim or submit the issue to the
Board for Determination pursuant to ORS 656,268, constitutes an unreasonable
resistance to the payment of compensation."” Claimant's attorney awarded a fee

of $200.00,
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WCB #799 November 21, 1967

Beno Johnson, Claimant,

Harold M., Gross, Hearing Officer.
Dan O'Leary, Claimant's Atty.

Robert E. Joseph, Jr., Defense Atty,

Claimant sustained a fracture of the right wrist on May 13, 1966, An excel-
lent result was obtained from the treatment and healing of that fracture.

The medical reports indicate that no permanent disability resulted from that
accident. Both the Hearing Officer and the WCB so found. The issue is
whether failure of the Hearing Officer to issue his order within the 30 days
specified by ORS 656,289 (1) goes to jurisdiction. The Board finds not,
stating, "There is no indication of legislative intent, that loss of juris-
diction was a sanction intended by the Legislature in enforcement of the
cited section. Also, in any event, the jurisdiction of the Board continues.”

WCB #852 November 21, 1967

Thomas Guy, Claimant.

Page Pferdner, Hearing Officer. :
Allen T, Murphy, Jr., Claimant's Atty.
Clayton Hess, Defense Atty,

Claimant was a roofing foreman, who suffered a broken left arm, The Determin-
ation awarded no permanent partial disability. Dr. Cohen's examination re-
vealed that motion in dorseflexion is limited by 10 degrees, Motion in palmar
flexion is slightly limited by 5 to 10 degrees. Supination is good, but
limited slightly by 5 degrees. Pronation is limited 10 degrees. Claimant
testified that his arm hurt after a day's work and felt a little weak. The
Hearing Officer awarded permanent partial disability of 10% loss of use of
left forearm. The remaining issue pertained to whether some shots in the
shoulder were compensable. The defendant insisted that they were palliative
rather than curative and, hence, not compensable. There was no medical testi-
mony on the point. The Hearing Officer found that they were palliative and
not compensable., The WCB agreed as to the law, citing Tooley v, SIAC 239 Or
466. However, the WCB was concerned over the factual question. It felt that
the amount concerned wasn't sufficient to justify remanding for further evi-
dence, so "It is suggested that claimant obtain a report from the doctor,

and that the State Compensation Department acknowledge its responsiblity

under ORS 656.245, if the treatments were other than palliative."

WCB #67-57 November 21, 1967

Robert W. Reischel, Deceased,

Page Pferdner, Hearing Officer.
Jack L. Kennedy, Petitioner's Atty,
Clayton Hess, Defense Atty.

Decedent was killed in an industrial accident. Petitioner seeks to show

herself to be his common-law wife. ORS 656,226 was held inapplicable, because
there were no children living "as a result of that relationship.” The alleged
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marriage is based upon a temporary visit to Idaho in 1963, when the parties
lived together in a motel for a few weeks, The decedent has identified the
claimant herein as an Maunt" on an insurance application after the Idaho
sojourn, Further, the parties maintained separate bank accounts, filed sep-
arate tax returns, and the claimant continued to use her former name on employ-
ment records in the years following the alleged Idaho marriage, The WCB
considered this substantial evidence to support a finding that no valid
common-law marriage was ever consummated in Idaho. Claim denied,

WCB #67-408 November 21, 1967

Janell L, Piatt, Claimant,

John F. Baker, Hearing Officer.
John J. Pickett, Claimant's Atty.
John E. Jaqua, Defense Atty.

Claimant had a neck injury. She said it happened while at work. The em-
ployer produced two employees at the hearing to impeach the claimant's
testimony. Both witnesses were in substantial agreement as to statements
made in their presence by the claimant. The employer's witnesses allege that
claimant stated that she got hurt over the weekend, but was going to claim
that she was hurt on the job; and, that if the witnesses would "stick up for
her," she would "split" with them, Hearing Officer denied claim, and WCB
affirmed,

WCB #433 November 21, 1967

Joseph A, Lescard, Claimant,

H, L., Seifert, Hearing Officer.,
Frank Mc K, Bosch, Claimant's Atty,
Gerald C, Knapp, Defense Atty,

This is a claim by a 62 year-old painter for a pulmonary disease, complicated
by a secondary infection and possible allergy, allegedly caused by exposure

to inhalations while spray painting in close quarters in early November, 1965,
Claimant had smoked two packs of cigarettes per day since 1916, Claimant, here,
ascribes the precipitating cause of his illness to the inhalation of paint
spray. The medical opinion, here, is conflicting., Dr. Richards believes, that
claimant has had a problem of chronic obstructive pulmonary disease for some
time. His diagnosis at the hospital was acute pneumonitis, due to inhalatiom
of respiratory irritants., The test is whether or not there is a medical causal
relationship between claimant's condition and his employment. Here, a pre-
existing disposition to a pulmonary disease does not furnish grounds to deny
compensation, if an accidental injury substantially causes the disability, or
materially contributes to hasten disability earlier than would have otherwise
occurred (Elford v, STAC, 141 Or 284.). The Hearing Officer found that evis
dence was sufficient to establish a compensable injury within ORS 656,002(6).
There was great confusion on Review. It seems as if the SCD had paid the
temporary total disability claim as an occupational disease, and the Hearing
Officer apparently found that was an accident. The Hearing Officer ordered

the claim accepted, It had been accepted, and the real issue, apparently, was
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the amount of disability. However, the SCD had requested review, and the only
issue raised is whether it was accident or disease. The WCB ducked this
issue, stating that the Medical Board should decide that, and remanded to the
Hearing Officer for a finding of the extent of disability, if any, resulting
from the claimant's compensable injury. The WCB further ruled that recourse
to the Medical Board of Review for a determination of whether an occupational
disease, should not be limited to the claimant,

WCB #923 November 21, 1967

Robert M, Rhode, Claimant.

Page Pferdner, Hearing Officer.
William E. Gross, Claimant's Atty.
Clayton Hess, Defense Atty.,

Claimant suffered severe burns over 607 of his body, 20% of which were second
degree burns and 407% of which were third degree burns. Numerous grafts were
made to his face, arms, hands, neck, chest, back and abdomen. 7Plastic surgery
including Z-plasty, dermabrasion, rhinoplasty and others were performed.
Claimant received vocational rehabilitation at Oregon Polytechnic Institute
and now earns $3.00 per hour as a draftsman, whereas before, he made $1.75
as a common laborer and truck driver. Nonetheless, claimant suffers from
the following principle problems:

(1). Facial disfigurement and the psychological effect.

(2). Burned areas sensitive to sun, wind, cold and chemicals,

(3). Reduced manual dexterity.

(4). Rash.

(5). Diminished strength.

(6). Diminished lung capacity.,

(7). Diminished vision.

(8). Impaired motion of the right arm and loss of circulation.,

(9). Tenderness and supersensitivity of his hands.

Scars, as such, are not compensable, unless they interfere with the ability to
work. Here, the extensive scars have resulted in some impairment of mechanical
function, and have severely damaged claimant psychologically. The Hearing Of-
ficer awarded a permanent partial disability of 15% loss of function of his
right arm; 10% loss of function of his left forearm; 65% loss of funcion of

an arm for unscheduled disabilities, including unscheduled eye disabilities,

The issue on review was the award of unscheduled disability for a visual defici-
ency. The medical evidence was that vision in both of claimant's eyes could be
restored to normal by refraction., ™"The Workmen's Compensation Board concludes
that there is no authority in the law to convert visual losses to unscheduled
disabilities. The Board does not construe the law to deny to a workman, compen=
sation for loss of industrial vision caused by damage to eyelids, which must
shield the eyes or tear ducts, which must lubricate the eyes. The Board con=
cludes the sagging eyelid, the watering and blurring of the eyes, and the lack
of usual accommodation to changes in light intensity, is equal to loss of 20%
of the binocular vision of the claimant.”™ The Board modified the Hearing Of-
ficer's order as follows:

(1). The award of unscheduled disability is reduced from 65% loss of an
" arm to 50% of an arm.
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(2). Claimant is awarded scheduled disability for the 20% loss of
binocular vision,

(3). The award of permanent disability with respect to the right
arm is increased from 15% to 30% of the arm,

The latter was based on poor circulation of the arm, as well as limitations
caused by scarring and sensitivity thereof,

WCB #67-437 November 21, 1967

Erwin L. Richert, Claimant,

John F, Baker, Hearing Officer.
John J. Pickett, Claimant's Atty,
James F, Larson, Defense Atty,

Claimant is a 27 year-old logger, who sustained injury to his lower neck, left
shoulder and dorsal spine, when hit by a flying sledge hammer, The Determina-
tion allowed permanent partial disability of 5% of an arm by separation for
unscheduled permanent partial disability. Claimant testified to pain, numbness,
and severe headaches., There was no medical evidence, other than that avail-
able at the determination, and this indicated a very minimal injury. Compli-
cating factors are that the claimant had suffered a serious lower back injury
some nine months earlier, for which compensation is still pending. The deter-
mination was affirmed.

WCB #67-294 November 22, 1967

William J. Benedict, Claimant,
John F., Baker, Hearing Officer.
Donald R, Wilson, Claimant's Atty,
Wayne A. Williamson, Defense Atty.

Claimant hurt his right knee and back, while working on the green chain on
April 23,1966. Claimant received various back treatments in 1966. He enrolled
in Advertising Art School, but dropped out on April 5, 1967, and went to work
parking cars, but his back bothered him, and he worked only for about a week.
Claimant alleges that he stopped work on the advice of Dr. Rask. However,

the only evidence presented, bearing on this time period, was a note from Dr.
Rask dated June 8, 1967, which states, "Please be advised, that Mr. Benedict is
under my care for a back injury, and is now released for light work duty.”

The Hearing Officer ruled, "It should have been a simple matter to establish
that Dr. Rask saw the claimant in April, and advised him not to work., Evi=
dence on this point was not produced by the claimant and is presumed to be
adverse to his interests.”" Accordingly, the claim for temporary total disabil-
ity for the period from April 20th to June 8th, 1967, was disallowed, On
review, claimant produced medical bills showing office calls between April 20th
and June 8th, but the WCB refused to consider same, calling them "new evidence.™

A second issue is whether claimant is entitled to temporary total disability
from February 2, 1967, until March 13, 1967, the date that Dr, Rask issued the
release. The insurance cartrier stopped payments for temporary total disability
on February 1, 1967, and on February 15th, the Determination of the Board,
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pursuant to ORS 656,268(2), found that the claimant's condition was medically
stationary as of February 2, 1967, The claimant wanted penalties for this
stoppage, but the Hearing Officer ruled that the subsequent ratification of

the conduct by the determination took them off the hook, both as to possible
penalties and attorney fees. On review, the WCB found that the determination
was in error, but this provides no bases for assessment of penalties or attorney
fees against the carrier, Accordingly, WCB awarded temporary total disability
from February 2nd until March 13th, 1967, the time at which the treating physi=
cian had released the claimant for work,

Thirdly, the claimant had contended that some time loss payments prior to
February 1, 1967, had been unreasonably delayed. To this, the Hearing Officer
ruled, "Where a claimant demands penalties for late payment, it is his responsi-
bility to indicate with particularity, including dates and amounts, the basis
for his demands.”

Fourthly, there was the issue of permanent partial disability. The most recent
medical report in evidence was that of Drs, Marxer and Harder, dated February 2,
1967. Its diagnosis was "Calcification or spur formation, slight, of D8 and

D9 anterior vertebral bodies due to a sprain or slight compression injury at

this juncture.'" The medical evidence also indicated that the claimant would

be "unable to engage in an occupation which requires heavy lifting. Accordingly,
an award was allowed granting an additional 107 loss of an arm by separation

for a total award equal to 25% loss of an arm by separation for unscheduled
permanent partial disability. WCB affirmed this.

WCB #67-535 November 22, 1967

Edward F, Stephens, Claimant,

H, L. Pattie, Hearing Officer.
James J, Kennedy, Claimant's Atty.
Roger Warren, Defense Atty.

Appeal from determination of no permanent partial disability for a left foot
injury. Claimant was a weldey and a metal object toppled over, striking his
foot, The first metatarsal suffered a transverse fracture near the end closest
to the big toe. The second metatarsal suffered an oblique fracture at the end
nearest to the ankle, The latter actually consisted of one long splinter,
approximately an inch and a half long on the side of the bone nearest the
inside of the foot. The fractures have healed quite well, but the blow was

of sufficient force to damage much of the cartilage, ligaments, muscle, skin
and other soft tissue surrounding the bones. The latter are not detectable on
X-rays., An examination at the hearing indicated a full-range motion without
pain except in dorsal flexion. There was still tenderness and some deep pain.
None of these symptoms had appeared at the time of the closing and determina-
tion. Hence, closing the claim without an award for permmment partial disa-
bility was proper. The symptoms appearing at the Hearing are what is known as
residual symptoms, and Dr. Burgermeister indicated that it was too early to
tell, if they were permanent, although Dr. McKillop felt there would be some
permanent impairment, The pain, which the claimant has suffered since the
closing, has not kept him from work. The Hearing Officer found that whatever
the problem, it was not shown permanent at this time, and if it so turned out,
a claim for aggravation should be filed. The WCB reversed, holding that the
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very reason for allowing a year for requesting a hearing on a disability deter=
mination is to allow for compensation of symptoms that show up after the
closing. The WCB found a 10% loss of a left foot, The Board observed that
the Hearing Officer had disregarded the weight of the evidence. There were
two doctors. One said it was too early to tell, and the other said there

was some permanent disability. Further, eight months had passed, and "While
time alone is not the sole test; and eight months is not a certain test,

the fact that disability admittedly exists under working conditions some eight
months after injury, is a factor which, with the medical opinion, leads the
Board to find...permanent partial disability."

WCB #685 November 22, 1967

Joseph A. Bonner, Claimant,

Harold M. Gross, Hearing Officer.
Wesley A, Franklin, Claimant's Atty.
Gerald Knapp, Defense Atty.

Claimant fell backwards on some horizontal pilings, and as a result suffered

a back injury. He had some history of congenital back condition. The medical
evidence indicated a spondylolisthesis at the lumbo-sacral level which might
need treatment. There was evidence of inability to do heavy lifting. The
Hearing Officer ordered an award equal to 20% loss of an arm by separation

for unscheduled disability, and further ordered SCD to provide claimant with
myelography and such other, and further medical services as might be so
indicated. The SCD observed on review that the Hearing Officer had, in effect,
ruled that the claimant's condition was medically stationary and ordered cura-
tive surgery too! The Board found that ORS 656.245 authorizes medical ser-
vices only for maintenance of a workman who has a permanent disability. However,
in the instant case, it is conceivable that the proposed medical procedures
would end any permanent diability. Accordingly the WCB found that the order
of the Hearing Officer was inconsistent and premature, and remanded the matter
to the Hearings Division for further medical treatment and proceedings.

WCB #67-397 November 22, 1967

Ludvick W. Carlson, Claimant,

H. L. Pattie, Hearing Officer.
Garret L. Romaine, Claimant's Atty.
Clayton Hess, Defense Atty.

Claimant suffers from a chronic lumbosacral sprain related to his employment.
The myelogram was negative, and the patient refused hospitalization for trac=
tion or for surgery, but the pain from which the claimant has been suffering,
is severe. The evidence is that the extent of pain which the claimant suffers
would cause a normal person to lose time from work, but the claimant worked
on, avoiding narcotic pain killers, because they caused a lightheadedness
which might be hazardous, as he works around furnaces. The determination,
equivalent to the 25% loss of an arm for unscheduled disability is affirmed.
The WCB also affirms,
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WCB #67-287 November 22, 1967

Frank A. Simmons, Claimant,
George W, Rode, Hearing Officer,
Lynn Moore, Claimant's Atty,
Earl Preston, Defense Atty.,

The Determination awarded claimant permanent partial disability equal to

20% loss of an arm by separation for unscheduled disability and 10% loss func-
tion of right foot for permanent aggravation of preexisting condition.
Claimant alleges he is permanently, totally disabled. Claimant suffered a
lower back injury in a fall, for which he underwent a laminectomy and has

since been wearing a body and leg brace. Several witnesses testified that
claimant had been able to carry on a full range of activities prior to this
accident, although in 1946 or 1947, claimant had been awarded a 407% disability
pension by the Veterans' Administration, which had since been raised to 80%
disability. Claimant now asserts that he is completely unable to do any work
and cannot walk more than a block at a time., The Hearing Officer found that
the claimant's motivation for returning to work was extremely low. Accordingly,
the Hearing Officer awarded a permanent partial disability equal to 45% loss of
an arm by separation for unscheduled disability, but made no mention of the
foot disability, which had been allowed in the determination., On review

the WCB remanded, concluding that the matter was incompletely tried, since
upon hearing, without explanation and contrary to the evidence, no award was
made for the foot. WCB also directed further consideration of permanent

total disability, directing that "If there is gainful and suitable employment,
which the claimant may regularly pursue, the record should so reflect.™

WCB #67-190 November 22, 1967

Nita Mullins, Claimant,

J. David Kryger, Hearing Officer,
Dan O'Leary, Claimant's Atty,
John Jaqua, Defense Atty.

Claimant, while pulling a loaded cart of plywood, fell, landing on her
buttocks and claims permanent partial disability to the low back area. Her
job involves standing, lifting, twisting and turning. Claimant complains
of pain in the left hip, numb spells in the right leg from the knee to the
ankle, a stiffness of the left arm and the neck, and periodic pain in the
lower back area. The doctors concurred that there was a low back strain,
but none made any substantial objective findings. There were nine doctors
who examined claimant. Also the medical evidence indicated that the subjec-
tive complaints were probably true, and the Hearing Officer so found. The
Hearing Officer awarded an additional 15% for a total of 30% loss of an arm
by separation for unscheduled disability to her back. In justification he
ruled, "However pain and suffering can be considered in determining the
effect which the pain and suffering has upon the disability of the claimant
(Wilson v. SIAC, 189 Or 114). Obviously, claimant's pain in the lower back
and the upper back areas have limited her earning capacity in that she is
now unable to return to her regular course of employment. Therefore, the
pain and suffering has affected her ability to work." The WCB affirmed.

-41-



WCB #67-410 November 27, 1967

Thomas H, Williams, Climant.

Page Pferdner, Hearing Officer,
Burl L. Green, Claimant's Atty,
Scott M. Kelley, Defense Atty,

This is an appeal from a Notice of Denial on the grounds, "...the alleged
accident did not occur during the course of employment with Publishers'

Paper Company, during the time coverage was provided by us and for failure

of the workman to give written notice within the time required under Oregon
Workmen's Compensation Law,™ Apparently claimant sustained a back injury

on April 30, 1966, Claimant had had a fusion in 1958, but apparently little
trouble until the date of injury. Claimant did not consult a doctor until

May 16. 1966. Claimant submitted a Supervisor's Report of Accident on May 24,
1966, in which he alleged he was injured May 23, 1961 (sic); although, it is
assumed he meant 1966, He filed a claim on March 14, 1967, some ten months
later and alleged the injury was on either March 19 or March 26, 1966. To
confuse matters even more, claimant stated that the accident was in "Mill Q)
when it was in "Mill E," and that he was "lifting iron," when he was opera-
ting a chain hoist to lift the heavy channel iron. The real date of claimant's
injury was not known by anyone until the time of the hearing, when claimant's
time cards were perused. The issue is whether there is Notice within 30 days
after the accident under ORS 656.265(2). It is to be noted that the Super-
visor's report of May 24, was filed within 30 days of April 30, but it had the
date of May 23, as the date of the accident. The Hearing Officer holds that
honest errors could be overlooked, but a deliberate misstatement, which ef-
fectively prevented the employer from investigating the accident, is too much,
No other notice within 30 days was given, and the only explanation for failure
was "I should have given notice." Accordingly, the claim is barred for want
of notice and the Notice of Denial sustained., The WCB affirms and observes
that there is a showing of prejudice to the employer, if it was to be required
under ORS 656.265 (4)(a).

WCB #67-69 November 27, 1967

Everett G. Hodgson, Claimant.
Harold M. Gross, Hearing Officer.
Allen T, Murphy, Claimant's Atty.
Clayton Hess, Defense Atty.

This is an appeal from a determination of no permanent partial disability.
Claimant had suffered a prior back injury in 1964, for which he was eventually
awarded 30% loss of function of an arm for unscheduled disability, together
with 7%% loss of function of the right leg. Notwithstanding the awards, clai-
mant was apparently able to carry out his work as a cement finisher fairly
well prior to the injury in question. Now, apparently, the claimant has pain
down both legs; pain down the right arm; stiffness in the back of the neck;
headaches; tenderness in the dorsal area; tenderness all up and down the cervi-
cal spine, particularly right under the occiput; tenderness of the web of the
neck and across the lumbosacral junction, particularly on the right; and calf
tenderness on the right and sciatic notch tenderness on the right and sacroiliac

47~



tenderness on the right., Claimant also missed some work. The Hearing Officer
awarded a sum equal to 5% loss of function of an arm for unscheduled disability
to the cervical and dorsal spine. On review the Board admonished that un-
scheduled disabilities should be stated in terms of loss by separation and not
by loss of use. The WCB concluded that the claimant was not compensated for
any cervical-dorsal disability for the prior injury, and that same was a new
injury, and that this cervical-dorsal disability suffered is equal to the loss
by separation of 15% of an arm.

WCB #67-252 November 27, 1967

Albert Dewitt, Claimant.

H. L. Seifert, Hearing Officer.
Burce W, Towsley, Claimant's Atty,
James Blevins, Defense Atty.

This is an appeal from a determination of permanent partial disability equal

to 15% loss of an arm by separation for a dorsal back sprin in a 65 year-old
janitor. Claimant demands total disability. The problem is complicated by

the fact that claimant had been suffering from severe emphysema and had been
considering retirement or partial retirement., Claimant has not been able to
return to work. The WCB comments, "The disabling effect of an injury upon a
workman who does not return to work is contended to be a prima facie permanent
total disability. Against this is balanced the fact that much of the philo-
sophy of hiring the handicapped may be lost by the financial hazard of continu-
ing employment of workmen with conditions such as emphysema. The issue in
each such case is whether the additional disability caused by compensable injury
renders the claimant totally disabled or only partially disabled. Failure to
return to work is not a prima facie test. It may be considered and has been

in this instance."™ The award of 15% loss of arm by separation for unscheduled
disability was affirmed.

WCB #67-395 November 30, 1967

Leonard E. Thornbragh, Claimant.,
John F, Baker, Hearing Officer.
Richard T. Kropp, Claimant's Atty.
Robert E. Joseph, Jr., Defense Atty.

Appeal from determination of 30% loss of arm by separation for unscheduled
disability to the lower back, resulting from a fall from a running board of a
truck. Claimant was 65 years old. Claimant complains of sharp low back pain
extending down the right leg. The treating physician's initial diagnosis was

~a low back strain--exacerbation of degenerative disc disease at L4 and L5 level,
Claimant has not responded to any medical treatment. Dr. Rockey found consider=
able impairment in the function of the back as the result of osteocarthritis

and lumbar disc degeneration. Claimant had received a disability award for a
back injury in 1937, but since that time has regularly engaged in strenuous
physical labor without substantial difficulty. Claimant is now unable to

43



return to his former employment as a sander operator, but thought that he could
do bench work or work as a night watchman, if he didn't have to walk too much.
The Hearing Officer increased the award to permanent partial disability equal
to 40% loss of an arm by separation, On review the WCB affirmed, commenting
that "The problem of evaluating disabilities is even more difficult where the
workman injured is approaching retirement."

WCB #67-364 November 30, 1967

Fred Koch, Claimant.

H, L., Pattie, Hearing Officer.
William F. Gross, Claimant's Atty.
Gerald C, Knapp, Defense Atty.

Appeal from determination of permanent partial disability equivalent to

40% loss of an arm for unscheduled disability for a back injury. Claimant
requested additional temporary total disability and medical care and treatment,
or in the alternative, if his condition was found to be medically stationary,
additional permanent partial disability. Claimant, now 52, suffered a jarring
back injury when he hit his head on a trailer while scrambling out from under
it, after he feared it was slipping from the jack that was supporting it.
Claimant did not respond well to treatment, and apparently treatment of the
lumbosacral injury actually aggravated a cervical problem, A myelogram per-
formed on January 1965, indicated a herniated disc at the L-4-5 level., Subse-
quent surgery revealed no herniated disc, but a spinal fusion was performed on
L-4, L-5 and S-1, The fusion was not solid as to L-4 and L-5, so a further
operation was carried out which was successful. Hearing Officer denied any
compensation for the cervical injury., He increased the award of permanent
partial disability to the equivalent of 607% loss function of an arm, finding
that the balance of the claimant inability to.participate in industrial em-
ployment is the result of his mental attitude, variously described as func-
tional overlay or laziness. The WCB modified the order to be total disability,
WCB found that the cervical problems should have been considered, If medical
treatment, even malpractice, creates additional disability, the additional
disability is also compensable as a result of the industrial injury. Some
medical evidence indicated that claimant will *hever pursue regular gainful
employment.” The WCB justifies an award of total disability as follows:

"An able-bodied workman with a history of stability is injured. He undergoes
several years of inactivity and medical treatment including major surgeries
with indifferent success on the part of the treatments. Some of the doctors
feel the workman has been restored physically to a point where he may be able
to do some work. Mechanically it appears that the claimant now has a stable
low back. If the claimant has a *functional overlayt' or a loss of the will to
again become a useful productive worker, it is only fair to assume this is the
result of the injury under the facts in this case.”
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WCB #67-284 December 4, 1967

Eddie L. Kilgore, Claimant,

Page Pferdner, Hearing Officer.
Charles J. Strader, Claimant's Atty,
Wayne A, Williamson, Defense Atty,
Request for Review by Employer.

Claimant was 38 years old and had no history of back difficulties. He had
worked as an off-bearer for some ten months prior to injury, but three days
prior to the injury, the mill began running cheese box shook, which is small,
light, dry lumber. This job required considerable twisting and stooping.
Claimant was found to have a spondylolisthesis at the L-5, S-1 level, secondary
to spondylolisis. Eventually a posterior lateral, bi-lateral fusion was
performed, Defendant contends that claimant did not sustain a compensable
injury, since the condition came on gradually and claimant cannot pinpoint any
specific time that the injury occurred., The Hearing Officer found that the
"time of accident is sufficiently definite, if either the cause is reasonably
limited in time or the result materializes at an indentifiable point.'”  Here
the cause was reasonably limited in time and the result materialized at an
identifiable point., The other problem in the case was the medical-causal
relationship. The Hearing Officer found that the evidence was inadequate

and solicited counsel for further medical evidence, It came in the form of

a letter from Dr. Lilly, which states that "The spondylolisthesis for which
Mr. Kilgore was treated could have been incurred from an on-the-job injury

in my opinion." The Hearing Officer then found that the medical-causal rela-
tionship was established and ordered the claim accepted., On review the WCB
found that a medical opinion in terms of "could have" or possibility, was
probably insufficient in light of Howerton v. Pfaff, 84 Adv 473. However, in
light of Uris v. SCD, 84 Adv 851, sufficient competent evidence was found in
the record to support the record, so the Hearing Officer was affirmed.

WCB #67-587 December 4, 1967

Maynard B, Bowles, Deceased.
George W, Rode, Hearing Officer.
C.S. Emmons, Beneficiary's Atty.
Donald J., Howe, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by SCD,

The only issue in the case is as to whether or not the workman's heart attack
and subsequent death arose out of the employment. The decedent was a log
scaler who worked in the water. During his lunch break a fellow employee
became injured and the decedent assisted, carrying the fellow employee from
the mill pond to an ambulance, Ten or so minutes later the workman was found
lying out over the top of his car with a yellow, sickly appearance. Soon
after his arrival at the hospital his heart went into fibrillation, and by

4 P, M, he was dead. No autopsy was performed, but the treating physician
diagnosed the cause of death as acute coronary thrombosis. The decedent

had no history of heart trouble, and the treating physician, a general practi-=
tioner, expressed his opinion that as a matter of reasonable probability,
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the workman's death was substantially contributed to by the exertion of running
for the water, of helping lift the stretcher and the excitement attendant
thereon, Dr, Adams specifically ruled out the probability of death having been
occasioned by pulmonary embolism, Stokes-Adams, paracardiosis, or heart valve
disease or rupture of a valve. Dr. Campbell testified as a specialist, and
stated that it was his opinion and the opinion of a majority of cardiac special-
ists that physical exertion has no relationship whatsoever to acute coronary
occlusion. The Hearing Officer noted the sequence of events and ordered the
claim accepted. The WCB expressed embarrassment at being the forum for the
resolution of medical issues with respect to which there are disputes among
respected and capable members of the medical profession. The WCB then observed
that the position adopted by the Hearing Officer was that of a general practi-
tioner, while a specialist had testified contra, However, the WCB affirmed,
declaring that "The Board in its policy on review does not substitute its
opinion for that of the Hearing Officer, unless there is obvious error, or unless
the decision of the Hearing Officer is not supported by substantial competent
evidence."

WCB #67-275 December 4, 1967
WCB #67-276 December 4, 1967

Page William Medford, Deceased.
Gordon Dee Medford, Deceased.

Harold M. Gross, Hearing Officer.
William F. Frye, Beneficiaries' Atty.
Earl M, Preston, Defense Atty,
Request for Review by SCD.

Claimants' decedents were killed simultaneously in an auto collision., The
decedents had gone to Eastern Oregon to do some bird hunting around Vale,

and then to buy some cattle at Paisley, Oregon. Both decedents were officers
and employees of the employer corporation. One was a regular buyer and the
other had gone along for the experience. They had finished hunting at Vale
and were on the highway to Paisley, when the accident occurred. This was a
weekend trip in October, but there was evidence to corroborate the intent

to buy cattle. The decedents had checked their credit arrangements and told
several people what they were going to do prior to and during their trip. The
Hearing Officer cited two theories, either of which would allow compensation
in this case, The first is Justice Cardozo's dual-purpose doctrine in Mark's
Dependents v. Gray, 251 N.Y, 90, 167 N,E, 181 (1929), which specifies that, if
the work was the motivating reason for the trip, and it would not have taken
place but for the work, then the employee is in the course of his employment.
There was evidence in the record that one of the decedents had said that, if
they made up their minds, that they were going to go over and buy beef, then
they would go hunting also. The second theory is that even if it is clear that
the main trip was charaterized as personal, a "business detour retains its
business character throughout the detour." Here the decedents had completed
the hunting and were on the highway to Paisley. A dual-purpose trip, "with a
completed personal errand put behind, and a business destination remaining to
‘be reached, there is the clearest kind of coverage.": Parr v. New Mexico
Highyay Department, 54 N,M. 126, 215 P2d 602 (1950). The SCD attempted to
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get a review, but their filing for same was beyond the 30-day limit of
ORS 656.289, and the WCB found that this went to jurisdiction even though
there was evidence that the SCD didn't actually know that the Hearing
Officer had filed his opinion.

WCB #67-301 December 4, 1967

C. J. Tourville, Qaimant,

J. David Kryger, Hearing Officer.
Don Wilson, Claimant's Atty,
James Blevins, Defense Atty,
Request for review by Claimant.

Claimant fell on his right side and was found to have permanent injury to
his shoulder and arm. The Hearing Officer found that the right shoulder was
within the scheduled area of the arm, and accordingly awarded permanent
partial disability to the extent of 25% loss function of the right arm for
scheduled disability. On review the WCB found:

l. One cannot assume that, if segregation is required, it would be
in addition to the arm award.

2. There is no Oregon case law involving the arm-shoulder upon which
to rely. A recent decision upheld awarding disability in the leg
for the back injury. It did not discuss a separate rating upon
the back.

3. 1If there is a shoulder injury and all of the disability is mani=
fested by limitations of function of the arm, the issue of dis-
ability should be restricted to a rating on the arm,

4, Tf we assume a useless or separated arm, what function remains with
respect to the shoulder associated with that arm? It could affect
the use of artificial prosthesis. It could cause disabling pain.
It could conceivably limit neck and head movement.

5. We do not agree that shoulder injuries either require or are to be
denied unscheduled disabilities. The record should clearly reflect
that there is a disability over and above the function of the shoulder
as an adjunct of the arm, before making two separate awards

6. It appears in this instance that the only real permanent disability
suffered by the claimant may properly be expressed in terms of loss
function of the right arm, even though some of that loss of function
originates in the shoulder,

Hence, the Hearing Officer is affirmed.
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WCB #67-372 December 4, 1967

John Virgil White, Claimant,
George W. Rode, Hearing Officer.
E. B. Sahlstrom, Claimant's Atty,
Earl Preston, Defense Atty.
Request for review by Claimant.

Claimant suffered bi-lateral fractures of both the left and right scapula,
when the truck in which he was riding was knocked off the road by a falling
snag during the Oxbow fire. The determination awarded a permanent partial
disability of 5% loss function of the left arm. Claimant says this is inade-
quate. Claimant's job record since the accident has been rather spotty, but
none of the job terminations was attributable to physical disability. Dr.
Degge's report, which was not available at the determination, indicated

"This workman has sustained a fracture of both scapulii which are well-healed
with moderate to minimal residual symptoms," Claimant asserted a pain in the
neck, but there was no medical confirmation of this and no award was allowed.
Further, a claim of low back pain was made., This is accounted for in the
report of the claimant's physician, who reports that there is trophism in

the last lumbar vertebra, which would make claimant's back wvulnerable to
heavy stress and cause pain. This trophism was attributed to the fact that
claimant has six lumbar vertebra, whereas the normal number is five., Any
lower back pain was found to be attributable to the congenital condition,

and hence not compensable. An award for permanent partial disability equal
to 5% loss function of the left arm and 5% function of the right arm was
entered, which was affirmed by the WCB.

WCB #857 December 6, 1967

Beaver Sports Properties Inc., Employer.
Harold M. Gross, Hearing Officer.

L, Guy Marshall, Employer's Atty.
Robert M, Christ, Beneficiary's Atty.
Clifford Allison, SCD Atty.

Claimant's decedent died at the age of 16 in a tractor accident on the Vernonia
Golf Course. The issue before the Hearing Officer was whether the employer

was subject to the Workmen's Compensation Act. Since the accident happened

in September 1966, there are two possible bases for holding the alleged employer
subject to the Act: Beaver Sports Properties Inc. will be subject to the

Act, if on or before the date in question they employed four or more emplovyees,
or if they had one or more employees and were engaged in a "hazardous occupa-
tion." There is no doubt that there were three employees working at the

golf course snack bar operation. The problem here is whether the decedent
himself was an employee. The decedent's father was the manager of the golf
‘course and an agreement had been set up whereby the father was to get an

extra $5.00 per week for the benefit of the boy. No separate accounting was
‘made of this on the corporation's records, and witholding records included
‘this amount in the father's gross pay. After the boy's death the $5.00 per
week was no longer in the father's pay. It is not unreasonable for the father
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and manager of operation to hire son in béhalf of the corporation. Whitlock

v, STAC 233 Or 166, 377 P2d 148 (1962) makes direct payment for services un=
necessary. It is not clear here whether the boy actually got the money or not,.
If he did, then Michaux v. Gates City Orange Crush Bottling Co., 205 N,C. 786,
172 S,E, 406(1934) would be controlling, The mere fact that money was paid

for his services is sufficient to place the claimant squarely within the defini-
tion of a workman under ORS 656,002, The Hearing Officer found that the em-
ployer was a subjeet one. On review the sole issue was whether the claimant
was entitled to attorney fees. The WCB ruled yes, noting that if the employer
were merely found subject and the claim were found not compensable, no attorney
fees could be allowed, but where the claim is otherwise compensable as here,
the conduct is equivalent to a denial of the claim. Accordingly, an order

was entered, allowing claimant's attorney a $500 fee over and above compen-
sation to which the claimant is entitled,

WCB #67-440 December 6, 1967

Electra Enterprises, Employer.

J. David Kryger, Hearing Officer.

James B; Griswold & Allen T, Murphy, Jr., Claimant's Atty.
Harold Adams, SCD Atty.

Lindel F. Filey alleges he was injured on the job, while employed for Electra
Enterprises. The compensability of the claim is not an issue as the issue

was limited to that of subjectivity. The employer alleges, generally, that

he did not have four or more employees and more specifically, that the vacuum
cleaner salesmen were independent contractors rather than employees. The opera-
tion of Electra Enterprises called for a manager, an assistant manager, three
telephone girls and six to eighteen salesmen., There is no doubt that the
assistant manager and the three telephone girls were employees making the
necessary four. The question remains whether the salesmen were independent
contractors. The primary test for independent contractor status is the right
of control and direction: Bowser v, SIAC 182 Or 42; Butts v. SIAC, 193 Or

417. Here Electra Enterprises required daily sales meetings, prescribed sales
techniques, regulated the prices of the vacuum cleaners, regulated sales
territories, arranged for sales appointments, required the use of Electra's
financing program, required all checks be made out to Electra enterprises
rather than the salesman, The Hearing Officer found that this test indicated
employer-employee relationship., The secondary tests are as follows: 1) Right
to terminate; salesmen could quit at any time. 2) furnishing equipment; Electra
furnished demonstrators and all advertising. 3) Specific piecework; salesman
made complete sales, indicating contractor status. &) Right to employ
assistance; all hiring was subject to approval of Electra. 5) Mode of Compen=
sation; Commission basis with no tax withholding. 6) Former relationship;
none, except claimant had sold for a predecessor of Electra under the same
arrangement. 7) Services for others; Salesmen could not sell other vacuum
cleaners, but could hold regular jobs in other occupations. 8) Use of own
Methods; salesmen were specifically trained and advised in techniques for sel-
ling, all sales were in the name of Electra and all major repairs had to be
made in Electra's repair shop. The Hearing Officer found that all indicia save
two, namely that salesman was hired for a specific piecework ba